
            

 

Pensions Committee 

 
MONDAY, 23RD JUNE, 2014 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, LONDON N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Bevan (Vice-Chair), Diakides (Chair), Doron, Marshall, Reith and 

Ross 
 
Non-voting Members: Brown, Jones and Melling 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)    
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. INTRODUCTORY COMMENTS BY THE CHAIR    
 
3. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of Urgent Business. (Late 

items of Urgent Business will be considered under the agenda item where they 
appear. New items of Urgent Business will be dealt with under Item 11 below. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter 

who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes 
apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a pending 
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are 
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
 



 

2 

 NOTE FROM THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

  When considering the items below, the Committee will be operating in its 
capacity as ‘Administering Authority’. When the Committee is operating in its 
capacity as an Administering Authority, Members must have due regard to 
their duty as quasi-trustees to act in the best interest of the Pension Fund 
above all other considerations. 
 

5. TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE  (PAGES 1 - 6)  
 
 To inform the Pensions Committee of its Terms of Reference as agreed by Full 

Council on 24 March 2014. 
 

6. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN - 31 MARCH 2014  (PAGES 7 - 24)  
 
 The report presents the audit plan prepared by the external auditors, Grant Thornton 

for the audit of the Pension Fund accounts 2013/14 for the Committee’s 
consideration. 
 

7. PENSION FUND - REVIEW OF PRIOR YEAR ACTIVITY  (PAGES 25 - 30)  
 
 The report summarises the pension’s activity undertaken by the Corporate Committee 

in 2013/14 and highlights outstanding issues brought forward to the current year. 
 

8. PENSION FUND - WORK PLAN 2014/15  (PAGES 31 - 36)  
 
 The report identifies topics that will come to the attention of the Committee in the year to 

March 2015 and seek Members input into future agenda’s. 

 
9. PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE  (PAGES 37 - 54)  
 
 The Council is required to review investment performance on a quarterly basis, and 

sections 13 and 14 of the report provide the information for this.  
 

10. DCLG CONSULTATION RESPONSE - OPPORTUNITIES FOR COLLABORATION, 
COST SAVINGS AND EFFECTIVENESS  (PAGES 55 - 92)  

 
 The Department for Communities and Local Government has issued a consultation 

document ‘Local Government Pension Scheme: Opportunities for collaboration, cost 
savings and efficiencies’.  The Council’s proposed response is attached for 
consideration. 
 

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE    
 
 To consider any items admitted at item 3 above. 

 
 



 

3 

 
12. DATE OF NEXT MEETING    
 
 Thursday 18th  September 2014 at 7.00pm 

 
 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – 
Corporate Governance and 
Monitoring Officer 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Oliver Craxton  
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
Tel: 020 8489 2615020 8489 2615 
Email: 
oliver.craxton@haringey.gov.ukoliver.craxton@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Friday, 13 June 2014 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 
Report for: 
 

 
Pensions  Committee: 
23 June 2014 
 

 
Item 
number 

 
 

 

 
Title: 
 

 
Terms of Reference of the Pensions Committee 

 

 
Report authorised 
by : 
 

 
Assistant Director of Corporate Governance and 
Monitoring Officer 
 

 

 
Lead Officer: 
 

 
Oliver Craxton (Tel. 020 8489 2615) 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: 
Not applicable 
 

 
Report for Key/Non Key Decision: 
Not applicable – for information. 
 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration  

 
To inform the Pensions Committee of its Terms of Reference as agreed 
by Full Council on 24 March 2014. 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 

  
Not applicable. 

 
3. Recommendations  

 
That the report be noted. 

 
4. Other Options Considered 

 
Not applicable. 
 

5. Background Information  
 

5.1 Full Council, at its meeting on 24 March 2014, agreed to the 
establishment of a Pensions Committee with effect from 1 April 2014.   

5.2 Prior to the Full Council meeting pensions matters had been within the 
remit of the Council’s Corporate Committee.  However, Full Council were 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



                                                                                 

Page 2 of 3 

informed that the benefits of establishing a pensions committee were (1) 
to free up Corporate Committee time for non pension  issues, (2) to better 
manage the training and knowledge and skills requirements through a 
smaller focused committee, and (3) to streamline decisions by having 
detailed debates at the decision making Pensions Committee rather than 
the non-decision making Pension Working Group, which will rarely be 
required in future. 

 
5.2  Pension fund issues previously occupied a significant proportion of the 

Corporate Committee’s available time.  Proposals to reform Local 
Government Pension Schemes (LGPS) will introduce additional 
governance requirements.  In particular there will be a need to 
demonstrate that members taking decisions have sufficient knowledge 
and skills to understand the issues.  This will involve both increased 
training and periodic assessments of the effectiveness of training.  
Meeting these requirements within a dedicated Pensions Committee is 
more achievable than when applied to the larger Corporate Committee.  

 
5.3 Full Council were further informed that an additional advantage of 

establishing a Pensions Committee was that the detailed monitoring, 
currently undertaken by the Pension Working Group, can be assumed by 
the Pensions Committee thereby streamlining decision making. 

 
5.4 During 2013 the Government consulted on the LGPS governance 

arrangements and is expected to require the establishment of a Pensions 
Board with employee and pensioner representation to scrutinise the work 
of the Pensions Committee.  Should the Government regulate as 
expected this will require a second pension related entity to be 
established to carry out the scrutiny function, although the decision 
making responsibility will remain with the Pensions Committee. 

 
6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications  
 

6.1 Most committee time is devoted to investment matters although it should 
be noted that employer and member issues fall within the remit of the 
Committee. 

 
6.2 The terms of reference should be kept under review and revised both to 

reflect changes in regulation but also the Committee’s appraisal of its 
role. 

 
6.3 There are no direct financial implications arising from the contents of this 

report. 
 
 

7. Assistant Director of Corporate Governance Comments and Legal 
Implications  

Page 2



                                                                                 

Page 3 of 3 

 
Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations. 
 

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 
N/A 
 

9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 
N/A 
 

10. Policy Implications 
 
N/A 
 

11. Use of Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 – Terms of Reference of the Pensions Committee. 
 

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
N/A 

 
 

Background Papers 
 
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report: 

 
Report on ‘Establishment of a Pensions Committee from 1 April 2014’ 
submitted to Full Council on 24th March 2014. 

 
 
 

The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High Road, 
Wood Green, London N22 8HQ 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

 Pensions Committee – Terms of Reference 

  
(a)  To exercise the functions which are stated not to be the responsibility 

of The Executive in Regulation 2 and Schedule 1 paragraph H of The 
Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 
Regulations 2000 (as amended) and in any Statute or subordinate 
legislation further amending these Regulations relating to those matters 
concerning the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Committee’s 
functions are those of the “Administering Authority” under the Pensions 
legislation. 

 
(b)  Exercising all the Council’s functions as “Administering Authority” and 

being responsible for the management and monitoring of the Council's 
Pension Fund and the approval of all relevant policies and statements. 
This includes:  

 
(i) Selection, appointment and performance monitoring of 

investment managers, AVC scheme providers, custodians and 
other specialist external advisers; 

(ii) Formulation of investment, socially responsible investment and 
governance policies and maintaining a statement of investment 
principles and funding strategy statement;  

(iii) Determining the allocation of investments between each asset 
class; 

(iv) Reviewing specialist external advisers performance;  
(v) Publicising statements and policy documents as required by 

legislation, government directives and best practice.  
 

(c)  To monitor and as appropriate to decide upon Pensions Administration 
issues. 

 

(d)  Monitoring the Pension Fund Budget including Fund expenditure and 
actuarial valuations; and to receive the Pension Fund Budget annually.  

 
(e)  To agree to the admission of bodies into the Council's Pension 

scheme. 
 
(f) To receive actuarial valuations.  
 
(g) To ensure that members of the Committee receive appropriate training 

to undertake their responsibilities. 
 
(h) To approve the Annual Accounts of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme and consider recommendations from the Auditor. 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 
Report for: 
 

 
Pensions Committee 
23rd June 2014 

Item 
number 

 

 

 
Title: 
 

 
Pension Fund External Audit Plan 2013/14 
 

 

 
Report authorised 
by : 
 

Assistant Director – Finance (CFO) 

 

 
Lead Officer: 
 

George Bruce Head of Finance – Treasury & Pensions 
george.bruce@haringey.gov.uk  
020 8489 3726 

 
 

 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 

 
Report for Non Key Decision 
 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration  
 
1.1 This report presents the audit plan prepared by the external auditors, 

Grant Thornton for the audit of the Pension Fund accounts 2013/14 for 
the Committee’s consideration. 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 
2.1 Not applicable.  
 
3. Recommendations  
 

3.1 That the 2013/14 Audit Plan prepared by Grant Thornton be agreed. 
 
4. Other options considered 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5. Background information  
 

5.1 The audit plan will be presented by Paul Jacklin, the Audit Manager 
from Grant Thornton. 

 

Agenda Item 6Page 7



                                                                                 

Page 2 of 3 

5.2 The plan sets out the approach the auditors will take, the key issues, 
timescales, staffing and fee for the audit.  The key pages are: 

 
 Pages 4 & 5 – overview of LGPS developments. 
 
 Page 6 – summary of the audit approach 
 
 Pages 7-9 – identification of the main risks relating to the 

misstatement of the annual accounts and the audit procedures that 
will be applied. 

 
 Page 13 – the auditor’s reporting framework 
 
5.3 Officers will provide the auditors with all necessary information during 

the audit which will take place during July.  Grant Thornton will then 
report back to the Pension Committee in September on their findings 
and any recommendations. 

 
 
6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and financial Implications  
 
6.1 Grant Thornton is proposing a fee of £21,000 for the 2013/14 audit, 

which is £1,379 less than the prior year fee. 
 

 
7. Assistant Director of Corporate Governance comments and Legal 

Implications  
 

 
7.1 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been consulted 

on the content of this report.  The audit is in line with the Council’s duty 
as administering authority for the Haringey Pension Fund. 

 
 

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 
8.1 There are no equalities issues arising from this report. 
 
9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 
9.1 Not applicable 
 
10.  Policy Implications  
 
10.1  None. 

 
11.  Use of Appendices 

Page 8



                                                                                 

Page 3 of 3 

 

11.1 Appendix 1: Grant Thornton – The Audit Plan for London Borough of 
Haringey Pension Fund for year ended 31st March 2014 

 
12.  Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
12.1 Not applicable. 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

1

Th
e A

ud
it P

lan
for

 Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 H

ari
ng

ey 
Pe

nsi
on

 
Fu

nd
Y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

e
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

E
m

il
y
 H

il
l

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

L
e
a
d

T
0
2
0
 7

7
2
8
 3

2
5
9

E
e
m

ily
.h

ill
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

P
a
u

l 
J
a
c
k
li

n
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

T
0
2
0
 7

7
2
8
 3

2
6
3

E
p
a
u
l.
j.
ja

c
k
lin

@
u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

Page 11



Th
ec

on
ten

ts
of

thi
sr

ep
ort

rel
ate

on
ly

to
the

ma
tte

rs
wh

ich
hav

ec
om

et
oo

ur
att

ent
ion

,
wh

ich
we

bel
iev

en
eed

to
be

rep
ort

ed
to

you
as

par
to

fo
ur

aud
it

pro
ces

s.
It

is
no

ta
com

pre
hen

siv
er

eco
rd

of
all

the
rel

eva
nt

ma
tte

rs,
wh

ich
ma

yb
es

ub
jec

tt
oc

han
ge,

and
in

par
tic
ula

rw
ec

ann
ot

be
hel

dr
esp

on
sib

let
oy

ou
for

rep
ort

ing
all

of
the

risk
sw

hic
hm

ay
aff

ect
the

Co
un

cil
or

any
we

akn
ess

es
in

you
rin

ter
nal

con
tro

ls.
Th

isr
epo

rth
as

bee
np

rep
are

ds
ole

ly
for

you
rb

ene
fit

and
sho

uld
no

tb
eq

uo
ted

in
wh

ole
or

in
par

tw
ith

ou
to

ur
pri

or
wr

itte
n

con
sen

t.W
ed

on
ot

acc
ept

any
res

po
nsi

bil
ity

for
any

los
so

cca
sio

ned
to

any
thi

rd
par

ty
act

ing
,

or
ref

rai
nin

gf
rom

act
ing

on
the

bas
is

of
the

con
ten

to
ft

his
rep

ort
,a

st
his

rep
ort

wa
sn

ot
pre

par
ed

for
,n

or
int

end
ed

for
,an

yo
the

rp
urp

ose
.

Page 12



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

3

Co
nte

nts
Se

ct
io
n

Pa
ge

1.
Un

der
sta

nd
ing

 yo
ur 

bu
sin

ess
4

2.
De

vel
op

me
nts

 re
lev

ant
 to

 yo
ur 

fun
d a

nd
 th

e a
ud

it
5

3.
Ou

r a
ud

it a
pp

roa
ch

6
4.

Sig
nif

ica
nt 

risk
s id

ent
ifie

d
7

5.
Ot

her
 ris

ks 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

 
8

6.
Int

eri
m 

wo
rk

10
7.

Lo
gis

tics
 an

d o
ur 

tea
m

11
8.

Fe
es 

and
 in

dep
end

enc
e

12
9.

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
n o

f a
ud

it m
att

ers
 wi

th 
tho

se 
cha

rge
d w

ith
 go

ver
nan

ce
13

Page 13



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

4

Un
der

sta
nd
ing

 yo
ur 
bu
sin
ess

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
s
/o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s

1
. 
L

G
P

S
 2

0
1
4

�
T

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 

A
c
t 
2
0
1
3
 (

th
e
 A

c
t)

 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
, 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 o

th
e
r 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
, 
re

p
la

c
e
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

fi
n
a
l s

a
la

ry
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

it
h
 a

 
c
a
re

e
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 r
e
v
a
lu

e
d

e
a
rn

in
g
s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 (

L
G

P
S

 2
0
1
4
).

�
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
re

 
c
o
m

p
le

x
, 
re

q
u
ir
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
.

2
. 
N

e
w

 g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts

�
T

h
e
 A

c
t 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e
s
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

e
g
im

e
 

re
q
u
ir
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

a
p
p
o
in

t 
a
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 b

y
 a

 
P

e
n
s
io

n
 B

o
a
rd

. 

�
T

h
e
 C

L
G

h
a
s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o

n
 

th
e
s
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 in

 2
0
1
4
 w

it
h
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 

A
p
ri
l 2

0
1
5
 a

t 
th

e
 la

te
s
t.
 

3
. 
T

h
e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 R

e
g

u
la

to
r

�
T

h
e
 A

c
t 
a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 f
o
r 

T
h
e
 

P
e
n
s
io

n
s
 R

e
g
u
la

to
r 
(T

P
R

) 
to

  
o
v
e
rs

e
e
 t
h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
G

P
S

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
.

�
T

h
e
 F

u
n
d
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 
s
e
t 
b
y
 T

P
R

.

4
. 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

 c
o

s
ts

/ 
s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

�
C

a
ll 

fo
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 L

G
P

S
 s

ig
n
a
lle

d
 

th
e
 C

L
G

's
 in

te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

L
G

P
S

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

�
L
G

P
S

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

a
re

 in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 u
n
d
e
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

–
in

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 C

IP
F

A
 i
n
te

n
d
 t
o
 

is
s
u
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

th
e
s
e
 in

 2
0
1
4
.

5
. 
L

o
c
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
o

u
ts

o
u

rc
in

g

�
W

it
h
 in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
p
e
n
s
io

n
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 s

ta
ff

, 
L
G

P
S

 f
u
n
d
s
 a

re
 a

d
m

it
ti
n
g
 

m
o
re

 p
ri
v
a
te

 c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
.

�
T

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
d
m

it
te

d
 b

o
d
ie

s
 m

a
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

ri
s
k
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 F

u
n
d
 in

 t
h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

o
f 
th

o
s
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 f
a
ili

n
g
. 

O
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

�
W

e
 w

ill
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 w

it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
G

P
S

 2
0
1
4
. 
W

h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
w

e
 w

ill
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
n
y
 

o
b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 2

0
1
4
.

�
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o
u
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

u
d
it
 w

e
 

w
ill

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
e
n
s
io

n
s
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

L
G

P
S

 2
0
1
4
 d

a
ta

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

F
u
n
d
's

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 

th
e
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
re

 g
o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 n

e
w

 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

.

�
W

h
e
re

 u
s
e
fu

l,
 w

e
 w

ill
 s

h
a
re

 o
u
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 T

P
R

a
s
 t
h
e
 F

u
n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

n
e
w

 r
e
g
u
la

to
ry

 r
e
g
im

e
.

�
F

ro
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 2

0
1
5
, 
 w

e
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 
o
u
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 T

P
R

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
 a

n
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

�
W

e
 w

ill
 s

h
a
re

 g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 in

 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
.

�
O

n
c
e
 is

s
u
e
d
, 
w

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 C

IP
F

A
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
 w

it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

.

�
W

e
 w

ill
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 a

n
y
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 
fo

r 
s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l c

h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 F

u
n
d
 w

it
h
 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

.

�
T

h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

re
g
u
la

r 
lia

is
o
n
 

w
it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
a
n
y
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 la

rg
e
 

s
c
a
le

 T
U

P
E

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 F

u
n
d
.

In 
pla

nn
ing

 ou
r a

ud
it w

e n
eed

 to
 un

der
sta

nd
 th

e c
hal

len
ges

 an
d o

pp
ort

un
itie

s th
e P

ens
ion

 fu
nd

 is 
fac

ing
.  W

e s
et o

ut 
a s

um
ma

ry 
of 

ou
r u

nd
ers

tan
din

g b
elo

w.

Page 14



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

5

De
vel
op
me

nts
 re
lev
ant

 to
 yo

ur 
Pe
nsi
on
 Fu

nd
 an

d t
he 

aud
it

In 
pla

nn
ing

 ou
r a

ud
it w

e a
lso

 co
nsi

der
 th

e im
pac

t o
f k

ey 
dev

elo
pm

ent
s in

 th
e s

ect
or 

and
 tak

e a
cco

un
t o

f n
atio

nal
 au

dit
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

 as
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 Co
de 

of 
Au

dit
 Pr

act
ice

 
and

 as
soc

iate
d g

uid
anc

e.
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts

1
. 
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
 

C
o

d
e

 o
f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 (

th
e

 C
o

d
e

) 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 

e
n

d
in

g
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
.

2
. 
L

G
P

S
 2

0
1

4

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n
g

 o
f 
th

e
 

C
a

re
e

r 
A

v
e

ra
g

e
 R

e
-v

a
lu

e
d

 E
a

rn
in

g
s
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 (

C
A

R
E

),
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 f
ro

m
 1

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
4

, 
w

ill
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

lo
a

d
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
e

n
s
io

n
s
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 t
e

a
m

. 
T

h
is

 

a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
, 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
a

y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 

th
e

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
 t
o

 a
u

d
it
 

q
u

e
ri

e
s
.

4
. 
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
P

re
s

s
u

re
s

 –
P

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d

P
e

n
s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

s
 a

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 

d
is

in
v
e

s
ti
n

g
 f
ro

m
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a

s
s
e

ts
 t
o

 

fu
n

d
 c

a
s
h

 f
lo

w
 d

e
m

a
n

d
s
 o

n
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
a

n
d

 

le
a

v
e

r 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 n

o
t 
c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

. 

P
e

n
s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 n

e
e

d
 

to
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 d
e

m
a

n
d

s
 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
m

a
rk

e
ts

.

3
. 
T

ri
e

n
n

ia
l 
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 a

c
tu

a
ri

a
l 

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri

n
g
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
d

e
fi
c
it
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 t
h

e
m

.

O
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

W
e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
d

e
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 o
u

r 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 o
u

r 
re

g
u

la
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

w
it
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.
 

W
e
 w

ill
 p

la
n

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

s
 w

it
h

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 F

u
n

d
 c

a
u

s
e

s
 m

in
im

a
l 

d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 t
o

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
.

W
e
 w

ill
  

m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 

m
a

d
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

re
g

u
la

r 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

W
e
 w

ill
  

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
  

o
n

 t
h

e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

p
e

n
s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

  
a

n
d

 a
d

ju
s
t 
o

u
r 

te
s
ti
n

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
.

W
e
 w

ill
 m

a
in

ta
in

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 w
it
h

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
th

is
 

h
a

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 

fu
n

d
 a

n
d

 a
n

y
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 in

 t
h

e
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

  
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

Page 15



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

6

D
e

v
is

e
 a

u
d

it
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
(p

la
n

n
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
re

li
a

n
c

e
?

)

Ou
r a
ud
it a

pp
roa

ch G
lo

b
a
l 
a
u

d
it

 t
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y

E
n

s
u

re
s
 c

o
m

p
li

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 (

IS
A

s
)

C
re

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 t
a
il

o
rs

 
a
u

d
it

 p
ro

g
ra

m
s

S
to

re
s
 a

u
d

it
e
v
id

e
n

c
e

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 

th
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 e

n
ti
ty

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t’
s
 

fo
c
u

s

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 

th
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 

y
e

a
r’

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
s

In
h

e
re

n
t 

ri
s
k
s

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 

ri
s
k
s

O
th

e
r

ri
s
k
s

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

b
a

la
n

c
e

s

Y
e

s
N

o

�
T

e
s
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

�
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 

a
n

a
ly

ti
c
a

l 

re
v
ie

w

�
T

e
s
ts

 o
f 
d

e
ta

il

�
T

e
s
t 

o
f 
d

e
ta

il

�
S

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 

a
n

a
ly

ti
c
a

l 

re
v
ie

w

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

C
o

n
c
lu

d
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
a

u
d

it
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s

ID
E

A

E
x
tr

a
c
t 

y
o

u
r 

d
a

ta

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

u
tp

u
t 

to
 t
e

a
m

s

A
n

a
ly

s
e

 d
a

ta
 

u
s
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

p
a

ra
m

e
te

rs

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
u

d
it

 p
la

n
 t

o
 

o
b

ta
in

 r
e

a
s

o
n

a
b

le
 

a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 a
re

 f
re

e
 

fr
o

m
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
m

is
s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

p
re

p
a

re
d

 i
n

 a
ll

 
m

a
te

ri
a

la
re

s
p

e
c

ts
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
IP

F
A

 C
o

d
e

 
o

f 
P

ra
c

ti
c

e
 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 u

s
in

g
 o

u
r 

g
lo

b
a

l 
m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 

a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 s

o
ft

w
a

re

N
o

te
:

a
.

A
n

 i
te

m
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
to

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

if
, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 i
ts

 o
m

is
s
io

n
 o

r 
n

o
n

-

d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
, 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

s
h

o
w

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 

fa
ir

 v
ie

w
.

Page 16



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

7

Sig
nif
ica
nt 
risk

s id
ent

ifie
d

'Sig
nif

ica
nt 

risk
s o

fte
n r

ela
te 

to 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
no

n-r
ou

tin
e tr

ans
act

ion
s a

nd
 ju

dge
me

nta
l m

att
ers

. N
on

-ro
uti

ne 
tra

nsa
ctio

ns 
are

 tra
nsa

ctio
ns 

tha
t ar

e u
nu

sua
l, e

ith
er 

du
e to

 siz
e o

r 
nat

ure
, an

d t
hat

 th
ere

for
e o

ccu
r in

fre
qu

ent
ly. 

Jud
gem

ent
al m

att
ers

 m
ay 

inc
lud

e th
e d

eve
lop

me
nt 

of 
acc

ou
nti

ng 
est

im
ate

s fo
r w

hic
ht

her
e is

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

me
asu

rem
ent

 
un

cer
tain

ty' 
(IS

A 3
15)

. 
In 

thi
s s

ect
ion

 we
 ou

tlin
e th

e s
ign

ific
ant

 ris
ks 

of 
ma

ter
ial 

mi
sst

ate
me

nt 
wh

ich
 we

 ha
ve 

ide
nti

fie
d.  

Th
ere

 ar
e tw

o p
res

um
ed 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

risk
s w

hic
h a

re 
app

lica
ble

 to
 all

 au
dit

s 
un

der
 au

dit
ing

 sta
nd

ard
s (I

nte
rna

tio
nal

 St
and

ard
s o

n A
ud

itin
g –

ISA
s)  

wh
ich

 ar
e li

ste
d b

elo
w:

S
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ri
s

k
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
u

b
s

ta
n

ti
v
e

 a
u

d
it

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
U

n
d

e
r 

IS
A

 2
4

0
 t
h

e
re

 i
s

a
 p

re
s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 t
h

a
t 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

is
s
ta

te
d

 d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

im
p

ro
p

e
r 

re
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
re

v
e

n
u

e
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

b
u

tt
e

d
 t
h

is
 p

re
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 d
o

 n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
is

 t
o

 b
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 
ri

s
k
 f
o

r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 s

in
c
e

:

�
T

h
e

 n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

 F
u

n
d

's
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 i
s
 i
n

 m
a

n
y
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ts

 r
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 p

re
d

ic
ta

b
le

 a
n

d
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 c
a

s
h

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
.

�
T

h
e

 s
p

lit
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
, 
th

e
 C

u
s
to

d
ia

n
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 F
u

n
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

p
ro

v
id

e
a

 v
e

ry
 s

tr
o

n
g

 s
e

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

u
ti
e

s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 a

ro
u

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

.

�
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 d

ir
e

c
t 
s
a

la
ry

 d
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 d
ir

e
c
t 
b

a
n

k
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 f
ro

m
 

a
d

m
it
te

d
 /
s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 b

o
d

ie
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
ly

 s
e

n
t 
s
c
h

e
d

u
le

s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 d
ir

e
c
tl
y
 

a
tt

ri
b

u
ta

b
le

 t
o

 g
ro

s
s
 p

a
y
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 i
m

p
ro

p
e

r 
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 u

n
lik

e
ly

.

�
T

ra
n

s
fe

rs
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

re
 a

ll 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

c
tu

a
ri

a
l v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
m

o
u

n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 f
u

n
d

s
.

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

o
v
e

r-
ri

d
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 
U

n
d

e
r

IS
A

 2
4

0
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
re

s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
o

v
e

r-
ri

d
e

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

is
 p

re
s
e

n
t 
in

 a
ll 

e
n

ti
ti
e

s
.

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t

�
T

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

ie
s

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
u

n
u

s
u

a
l s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

Page 17



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

8

Ot
her

 ris
ks

Th
e a

ud
ito

r sh
ou

ld e
val

uat
e t

he 
des

ign
 an

d d
ete

rm
ine

 th
e im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e e
nti

ty's
 co

ntr
ols

, in
clu

din
g r

ele
van

t co
ntr

ol 
act

ivit
ies

, o
ver

 th
ose

 ris
ks 

for
 wh

ich
, in

 th
e 

aud
ito

r's 
jud

gm
ent

, it
 is 

no
t p

oss
ibl

e o
r p

rac
tica

ble
 to

 re
du

ce 
the

 ris
ks 

of 
ma

ter
ial 

mi
sst

ate
me

nt 
at t

he 
ass

ert
ion

 lev
el t

o a
n a

cce
pta

bly
 lo

w l
eve

l w
ith

 au
dit

 ev
ide

nce
 ob

tain
ed 

on
ly f

rom
 su

bst
ant

ive
 pr

oce
du

res
 (IS

A 3
15)

. 

O
th

e
r 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 
p

o
s

s
ib

le
 r

is
k

s
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
la

n
n

e
d

 a
u

d
it

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 n

o
t 
v
a

lid

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 n

o
t
v
a

lid

A
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 I
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 n

o
t 
v
a

lid
 

F
a

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n
t 
n

o
t 
c
o

rr
e

c
t

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
, 
th

e
 

c
u

s
to

d
ia

n
  
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
's

 o
w

n
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

e
k
 e

x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
.

F
o

r
u

n
q

u
o

te
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
w

e
 w

ill
 c

ri
ti
c
a

lly
 a

s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 a

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
a

n
d

 

c
h

e
c
k
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 
a

u
d

it
e

d
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
fu

n
d

.

T
h

e
 e

x
is

te
n

c
e

 o
f 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 d
ir

e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h

 t
o

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

.

W
e
 w

ill
 t

e
s
t 
a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

s
a

n
d

 s
a

le
s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
b

a
c
k
 t
o

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
.

B
e

n
e

fi
t
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 i
m

p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

/c
la

im
s

lia
b

ili
ty

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

te
d

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

te
n

c
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
p

e
ra

te
d

b
y
 t

h
e

 F
u

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t
a

ll 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
re

 

c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
. 
W

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

te
s
ti
n

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

, 
w

e
 w

ill
 t

h
e

n
 t
e

s
t 
th

e
 k

e
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 in

 

th
e

s
e

 a
re

a
s
.

W
e
 w

ill
 t

h
e

n
 s

e
le

c
t 
a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l t

ra
n

s
fe

rs
, 
p

e
n

s
io

n
s
 in

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
, 

lu
m

p
 s

u
m

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 a
n

d
 

re
fu

n
d

s
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
t
th

e
m

 b
y
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 t
o

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

fi
le

s
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

a
ti
o

n
a

lis
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
s
 p

a
id

 w
it
h

 r
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 in

 p
e

n
s
io

n
e

r 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 

a
p

p
lie

d
 in

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

n
g

 p
e

n
s
io

n
s
 p

a
id

 o
n

 a
 m

o
n

th
ly

 b
a

s
is

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
a

n
y
 

u
n

u
s
u

a
l t

re
n

d
s
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ri
ly

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

.

Page 18



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

9

Ot
her

 ris
ks

Th
e a

ud
ito

r sh
ou

ld e
val

uat
e t

he 
des

ign
 an

d d
ete

rm
ine

 th
e im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e e
nti

ty's
 co

ntr
ols

, in
clu

din
g r

ele
van

t co
ntr

ol 
act

ivit
ies

, o
ver

 th
ose

 ris
ks 

for
 wh

ich
, in

 th
e 

aud
ito

r's 
jud

gm
ent

, it
 is 

no
t p

oss
ibl

e o
r p

rac
tica

ble
 to

 re
du

ce 
the

 ris
ks 

of 
ma

ter
ial 

mi
sst

ate
me

nt 
at t

he 
ass

ert
ion

 lev
el t

o a
n a

cce
pta

bly
 lo

w l
eve

l w
ith

 au
dit

 ev
ide

nce
 ob

tain
ed 

on
ly f

rom
 su

bst
ant

ive
 pr

oce
du

res
 (IS

A 3
15)

. 

O
th

e
r 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 
p

o
s

s
ib

le
 r

is
k

s
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
la

n
n

e
d

 a
u

d
it

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

R
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 n

o
t 
c
o

rr
e

c
t

W
e
 h

a
v
e

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

te
n

c
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
p

e
ra

te
d

b
y
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
it
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 a

n
d

 

re
c
e

iv
e

s
 a

ll 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 f
ro

m
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
b

o
d

ie
s
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 t

e
s
t 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 F
u

n
d

.

W
e
 w

ill
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

ly
te

s
t 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 A

d
m

in
is

te
ri

n
g
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 w

it
h

 r
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 in

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

b
o

d
y
 p

a
y
ro

lls
 a

n
d

 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
a

n
y
 u

n
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
re

n
d

s
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ri
ly

 

e
x
p

la
in

e
d

.

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

D
a

ta
 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

d
a

ta
 n

o
t 
c
o

rr
e

c
t

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

th
e

 e
x
is

te
n

c
e

 o
f

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n

o
f 

m
e

m
b

e
r 

e
lig

ib
ili

ty
, 
th

e
 i
n

p
u

t 
o

f 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
n

to
 t
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
S

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
re

c
o

rd
s
. 
W

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

te
s
ti
n

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

, 

w
e

 w
ill

 t
h

e
n

 t
e

s
t 
th

e
 k

e
y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

a
s
.

Page 19



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

10

Int
eri
m 
aud

it w
ork

Sc
op

e
As

 pa
rt o

f th
e in

ter
im

 au
dit

 wo
rk,

 an
d i

n a
dv

anc
e o

f o
ur 

fin
al a

cco
un

ts a
ud

it f
ield

wo
rk,

 we
 wi

ll c
on

sid
er:

•
the

 ef
fec

tiv
ene

ss 
of 

the
 in

ter
nal

 au
dit

 fu
nct

ion
•

int
ern

al a
ud

it's
 wo

rk 
on

 th
e P

ens
ion

 fu
nd

's k
ey 

fin
anc

ial 
sys

tem
s

•
wa

lkt
hro

ugh
 tes

tin
g t

o c
on

firm
 wh

eth
er 

con
tro

ls a
re 

im
ple

me
nte

d a
s p

er 
ou

r u
nd

ers
tan

din
g in

 ar
eas

 wh
ere

 we
 ha

ve 
ide

nti
fie

d a
 ris

k o
f m

ate
ria

l m
iss

tat
em

ent
•

a r
evi

ew
 of

 In
for

ma
tio

n T
ech

no
log

y (I
T) 

con
tro

ls

W
o

rk
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 a
n

d
 f

in
d

in
g

s
C

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n

In
te

rn
a

l
a

u
d

it
W

e
 h

a
v
e

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
's

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 

w
it
h

 a
u

d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
. 
O

u
r 

w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 
is

s
u

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
e

 w
is

h
 t
o

 b
ri

n
g

 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
.

O
v
e

ra
ll,

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 I
n

te
rn

a
l A

u
d

it
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 c

a
n

 t
a

k
e

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t
o

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
a

t 
th

e
 F

u
n

d
. 

O
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 

w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 o

u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

.

W
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

te
s

ti
n

g
W

e
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
e

s
ts

 
fo

r 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
, 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

p
a

y
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
d

a
ta

. 
W

e
 a

re
 y

e
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
 f
o

r 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 a

s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

is
 w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

.

O
u

r 
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 w

is
h

 t
o

 b
ri

n
g

 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
. 
In

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 

o
u

r 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
.

O
u

r
w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
, 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 p
a

y
a

b
le

  
a

n
d

 

m
e

m
b

e
r 

d
a

ta
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

.

J
o

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
F

u
n

d
's

jo
u

rn
a

l 
e

n
tr

y
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 o
u

r 
jo

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

y
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 t

h
e

n
 

re
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
p

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 j
o

u
rn

a
ls

 r
a

is
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 e

x
tr

a
c
t 

a
n

d
 t
e

s
t 
a

n
y
 'u

n
u

s
u

a
l' 

a
n

d
 l
a

rg
e

 j
o

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

ie
s
.

T
h

is
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
 p

o
s
t 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
. 
T

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
  
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o

 

th
e

  
P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 in

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

.

Page 20



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

11

Th
e 
au

di
t c

yc
le

Lo
gis
tics

 an
d o

ur 
tea
m

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

/

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 
D

e
b

ri
e
f

In
te

ri
m

 a
u

d
it

v
is

it

F
in

a
l 
a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

v
is

it

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

J
u

ly
-A

u
g

u
s

t 
2

0
1

4
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

4
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

4

Ke
y p

ha
se
s o

f o
ur
 a
ud

it

2
0
1
3
-2

0
1
4

Da
te

Ac
tiv

ity

2
1

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
3

P
la

n
n

in
g

m
e

e
ti
n

g

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
4

In
te

ri
m

 s
it
e

 w
o

rk
 

J
u

n
e

2
0

1
4

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 

P
e

n
s
io

n
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

J
u

ly
2

0
1

4
Y

e
a

r
e

n
d

 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

s

A
u

g
u

s
t

2
0

1
4

 
A

u
d

it
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 c

le
a

ra
n

c
e

m
e

e
ti
n

g

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

F
in

d
in

g
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 

P
e

n
s
io

n
s

C
o

m
m

it
te

e

Ou
r t
ea

m

E
m

il
y

H
il

l
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a

d

T
0

2
0

 7
7

2
8

 3
2

5
9

E
  

  
e

m
ily

.h
ill

@
u

k
.g

t.
c
o
m

P
a

u
l 
J

a
c

k
li

n
A

u
d

it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

T
0

2
0

 7
7

2
8

 3
2

6
3

E
p

a
u

l.
j.
ja

c
k
lin

@
u

k
.g

t.
c
o

m

Page 21



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

12

Fee
s a
nd
 in
dep

end
enc

e

Ou
r f
ee

 a
ss
um

pt
io
ns
 in
cl
ud

e:
�

Ou
r fe

es 
are

 ex
clu

siv
e o

f V
AT

 
�

Su
pp

ort
ing

 sc
hed

ule
s to

 all
 fig

ure
s in

 th
e a

cco
un

ts a
re 

sup
pli

ed 
by 

the
 ag

ree
d 

dat
es 

and
 in

 ac
cor

dan
ce 

wit
h t

he 
agr

eed
 up

on
 in

for
ma

tio
n r

equ
est

 lis
t

�
Th

e s
cop

e o
f th

e a
ud

it, 
and

 th
e P

ens
ion

 Fu
nd

 an
d i

ts a
ctiv

itie
s h

ave
 no

t 
cha

nge
d s

ign
ific

ant
ly

�
Th

e P
ens

ion
 fu

nd
 wi

ll m
ake

 av
aila

ble
 m

ana
gem

ent
 an

d a
cco

un
tin

g s
taf

f to
 

hel
p u

s lo
cat

e in
for

ma
tio

n a
nd

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 ex
pla

nat
ion

s

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 e
th
ic
s

We
 co

nfi
rm

 th
at t

her
e a

re 
no

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

fac
ts o

r m
att

ers
 th

at i
mp

act
 on

 ou
r 

ind
epe

nd
enc

e a
s a

ud
ito

rs t
hat

 we
 ar

e r
equ

ire
d o

r w
ish

 to
 dr

aw
 to

 yo
ur 

att
ent

ion
. W

e 
hav

e c
om

pli
ed 

wit
h t

he 
Au

dit
ing

 Pr
act

ice
s B

oar
d's

 Et
hic

al S
tan

dar
ds 

and
 th

ere
for

e w
e 

con
firm

 th
at w

e a
re 

ind
epe

nd
ent

 an
d a

re 
abl

e to
 ex

pre
ss 

an 
ob

jec
tiv

e o
pin

ion
 on

 th
e 

fin
anc

ial 
sta

tem
ent

s.
Fu

ll d
eta

ils 
of 

all 
fee

s c
har

ged
 fo

r a
ud

it a
nd

 no
n-a

ud
it s

erv
ice

s w
ill b

e in
clu

ded
 in

 ou
r 

Au
dit

 Fi
nd

ing
s re

po
rt a

t th
e c

on
clu

sio
n o

f th
e a

ud
it.

We
 co

nfi
rm

 th
at w

e h
ave

 im
ple

me
nte

d p
oli

cie
s a

nd
 pr

oce
du

res
 to

 m
eet

 th
e r

equ
ire

me
nt 

of 
the

 Au
dit

ing
 Pr

act
ice

s B
oar

d's
 Et

hic
al S

tan
dar

ds.

Fe
es
 fo

r o
th
er
 se

rv
ic
es

S
e

rv
ic

e
£

N
o

n
e

 
N

il

Fe
es

£

P
e

n
s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 a
u

d
it

2
1

,0
0

0

Page 22



©
  2

01
4 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 | 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n

13

Co
mm

un
ica
tio
n o

f a
ud
it m

att
ers
 wi
th 
tho

se 
cha

rge
d w

ith
 go

ver
nan

ce
O

u
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

A
u

d
it

 
p

la
n

A
u

d
it

 
fi

n
d

in
g

s

R
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t/

th
o

s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 

w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

�

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 t
im

in
g

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
. 
F

o
rm

, 
ti
m

in
g

 

a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
c
o

n
te

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

s

�

V
ie

w
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

  
o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
ty

's
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
, 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

ri
s
in

g
 d

u
ri

n
g

 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
o

u
g

h
t

�

C
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y

�
�

A
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
th

a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

  
re

le
v
a

n
t 
e

th
ic

a
l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e
, 
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h

t 
 

b
e

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

a
r 

o
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e
. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
n

o
n

-a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 b

y
 G

ra
n

t 
T

h
o

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

 a
n

d
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 f
ir

m
s
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

  
fe

e
s
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
. 
 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
s
 a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 t
h

re
a

ts
 t
o

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

�
�

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
�

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
s
u

s
p

ic
io

n
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

/o
r 

o
th

e
rs

 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

�

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s

�

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 m

o
d

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r'
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 
o

r 
e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 o
f 
m

a
tt

e
r

�

U
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
�

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ri

s
in

g
 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s

�

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
�

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
  
(I

S
A

) 
2

6
0

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
IS

A
s
, 
p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 

w
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 o
p

p
o

s
it
e

. 
 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t,

 T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

, 
o

u
tl
in

e
s
 o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
, 

w
h

ile
 T

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
  
a

n
d

 

w
ill

 p
re

s
e

n
t 
k
e

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
n

 

e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
 t
o

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
.

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 a
n

y
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 o
r 

u
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 

b
a

s
is

, 
e

it
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

lly
 o

r 
v
ia

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

.

Re
sp
ec

tiv
e 
re
sp
on

sib
ili
tie

s
T

h
is

 p
la

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 (

w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
).

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

a
n

d
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

's
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 

a
u

d
it
o

rs
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 
th

e
 b

o
d

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
a

p
p

o
in

ti
n

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 

to
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 b

o
d

ie
s
 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

. 
A

s
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
 b

ro
a

d
 r

e
m

it
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 

fi
n

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
. 

O
u

r 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 is

 s
e

t 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 (
th

e
 

C
o

d
e

) 
is

s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

d
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 w

o
rk

. 
O

u
r 

w
o

rk
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 t
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

's
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
 w

h
e

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 o
u

r 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

. 

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

's
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
re

lie
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

r 

th
o

s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 o
f 
th

e
ir

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
.

Page 23



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. 
A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, 

a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 t
he

 b
ra

nd
 u

nd
er

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

re
qu

ire
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

an
d 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
a 

w
or

ld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
ly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

Page 24



                                                                                 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 
Report for: 
 

 
Pensions Committee 
23rd June 2014 

Item 
number 

 
 

 

 
Title: 
 

 
Pension Fund – Review of Prior Year Activity  

 

 
Report authorised 
by : 
 

 
 
 
Assistant Director – Finance (CFO) 

 

 
Lead Officer: 
 

George Bruce, Head of Finance – Treasury & 
Pensions 
George.bruce@haringey.gov.uk 
020 8489 8621 

 
 

 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 

 
Report for Non Key Decision 
 

 
1.  Describe the issue under consideration  
 
1.1 The purpose of the paper is to summarise the pension’s activity 

undertaken by the Corporate Committee in 2013/14 and highlight 
outstanding issues brought forward to the current year. 

 
2.  Cabinet Member Introduction 
 
2.1 Not applicable.  
 
3.  Recommendations  
 
3.1  The Committee is invited to note the pensions issues discussed in the 

last twelve months and in particular those items carried forward into 
next years work plan.  

 

4.  Other options considered 

 
4.1 None. 
 
5. Background information  
 

Agenda Item 7Page 25



                                                                                 

Page 2 of 6 

5.1 The Pensions Committee has assumed responsibilities previously 
allocated to the Corporate Committee.  With the change in committee 
membership there is likely to be a knowledge gap on pension matters 
recently discussed by the Corporate Committee.  This note briefly 
summarises activity in the last twelve months, highlighting outcomes 
and actions carried forward. 

 

6. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer & financial implications  

 
6.1 The report highlights the major pension fund developments over the 

last twelve months and those aspects carried forward. There are no 
specific financial considerations. 

 
7. Assistant Director of Corporate Governance comments and 
 Legal Implications  

  
7.1 The Council as administering authority for the Haringey Pension Fund 
 has the power to invest fund monies as set out in Local Government 
 Pension Scheme (Management and Investment Funds) Regulations 
 2009.   
 
7.2  There are no legal issues within the paper. 

 
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 
8.1 Not applicable. 
 
9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 
 9.1 Not applicable. 
 
10.  Policy Implications  
 
10.1 None. 
 
11.  Use of Appendices 
 
 Appendix 1: Strategic Asset Allocation  
 
12  Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
12.1 Not applicable. 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



                                                                                 

Page 3 of 6 

13. Employer Issues 

 
Actuarial Valuation 
 
13.1 The Council’s actuary, Hymans Robertson, completed the tri-annual 

actuarial valuation of the fund as at 31st March 2013.  The purpose of 
the valuation is to determine the level of employer contributions 
payable in the three years from 1st April 2014. 

 
13.2 The Actuary determined that at the whole scheme level the fund had an 

excess of liabilities (future pension promises) over assets of £370 
million, representing a funding level of 70%.  Contribution levels are 
determined separately for each individual employer.  For example, the 
Council’s rate will increase by 2% from 22.9% to 24.9% in the three 
years to 31st March 2017.  The deficit will be addressed through 
anticipated investment returns and deficit contributions from employers. 

 
13.3  The pension administration team monitor that employers’ pay the new 

contribution rates. 
 
13.4 The Actuary has estimated the funding level and deficit as at 30th April 

2014 and this has improved with an estimated deficit of £328 million 
(73.4%funding level) as a consequence of rising equity markets. 

 
13.5  The funding strategy statement was updated to reflect the revised 

assumptions used in the valuation and following consultation with 
employers.  This document is normally updated every three years. 

 
Changes in Employer Make up 
 
13.6 There was an increase of 2 to 43 in the number of employers 

contributing to the fund during the year.   The scheme has 20,094 
members (6,168 active, 7,212 deferred and 6,714 pensioners). 

 
14.  Member Issues 
 
14.1 The benefit structure for future service changed from a final salary 

scheme to a career average scheme from 1st April 2014.  Across all 
LGPS funds career average based pensions are expected to be a less 
costly (therefore less generous) benefit structure, although the position 
for each member will depend on age and salary progression.  Similarly, 
most, but not all employers will save as a consequence of the new 
benefit structure.  The benefit structure changes have significant 
implications for the record keeping obligations of the Council and will 
complicate the calculation of benefits.  Associated changes include the 
introduction of a reduced pension entitlement in exchange for lower 
member contributions (50/50 option).   

Page 27



                                                                                 

Page 4 of 6 

 
14.2 Member contributions for high earners have also increased from April 

2014. 
 
14.3 The Council’s date to implement auto-enrolment was March 2013.  

These rules require that all employees who have not previously joined 
the pension scheme must be brought in but then have the opportunity 
to opt out.  The process is repeated every three years for any non 
joiners. The Council (as an employer) opted to defer the introduction of 
auto-enrolment for existing staff until June 2017 under transition 
provisions.  However, all new recruits and any member of staff who has 
a change of role, is immediately subject to auto-enrolment.   Again, this 
is a significant administrative challenge. 

 
15.  Investment Strategy and Fund Managers 
 
15.1 In conjunction with the actuarial valuation, the Corporate Committee 

reviewed the allocations to individual asset classes (equities, bonds 
etc).  The purpose of the review was to identify a balance of assets that 
was likely to generate sufficient returns to address the funding level 
deficit (see 13.2) and avoid unnecessary risk that the funding level 
would deteriorate. 

 
15.2 The revised strategy is summarised in appendix 1.  The allocation to 

equities was initially reduced by 10% and with the creation of new 
allocations to infrastructure debt and multi-sector credit. 

 
15.3 The Corporate Committee agreed to appoint two new fund managers, 

each to be awarded mandates valued at £45 million.  These are: 
 
 Allianz – infrastructure debt. 
 CQS – multi sector credit 
 
15.4 Discussions are underway with both managers on the legal documents 

to be signed and it is anticipated that this will be finalised by the end of 
June.  The CQS mandate will be funded soon after signature but 
Allianz will take 12-18 months to be fully invested as Allianz seeks 
suitable investment opportunities. 

 
15.5  The Corporate Committee also discussed a reduction in the index 

linked portfolio from 15% to 10% through a move to a leveraged index 
linked fund.  This would allow a doubling of the CQS mandate from £45 
million to £90 million.  Concerns on the structure of the leveraged fund 
resulted in this decision being deferred and it will be brought forward in 
2014-15. 

 

Page 28



                                                                                 

Page 5 of 6 

15.6 The other main change to the investment portfolio was to increase the 
investment in the property portfolio by £35 million.  The target allocation 
to property remained 10%, but the actual allocation has fallen to under 
7%.  The Corporate Committee decided to revert to the benchmark 
allocation to be funded by a reduction in the actual (not the strategic) 
allocation to equities. 

 
15.7 So far an additional £17 million has been invested in property.  Cash is 

made available to the manager, CBRE, as they identify suitable 
opportunities, which is expected to take a further 3-6 months. 

 
15.8 The Statement of Investment Principles has been updated to reflect the 

above changes in investment policy. 
 
16.  Collective Investment Vehicle 
 
16.1 The Government initiated a debate on the structure of the local 

government pension schemes suggesting that there were too many 
funds and that amalgamation would save costs, lead to wider 
investment opportunities and possibly improve returns through better 
governance.  In response to these proposals, London Council’s through 
the Leaders Committee and Society of London Treasurers agreed to 
set up a vehicle for collective investment management.  Haringey 
supported this initiative by contributing £25,000 towards the set up / 
investigation costs and purchasing £1 share capital. Almost all London 
council’s have similarly agreed to initially support the establishment of 
the Collective Investment vehicle (CIV).  It is anticipated that the 
establishment formalities will be completed Q1, 2015 at which point 
Haringey will have the opportunity to invest some of its fund through 
the CIV on a voluntary basis. 

 
16.2 The government has reflected on the responses for the call for 

evidence on LGPS structures and has issued a consultation document, 
which is a separate paper on the agenda. 

 
  

Page 29



                                                                                 

Page 6 of 6 

Appendix 1 
 
Strategic Asset Allocation 
 
 

Asset class Benchmark % Range % 

UK Equities   15 12-18% 

Overseas Equities   45 40-50% 

North America  21.7     

Europe ex UK 7.4     

Pacific ex Japan 3.4     

Japan  3.5     

Emerging Markets 9     

UK Index linked gilts   15 12-18% 

Property    10 6-12% 

Multi Sector Credit   5 4-6% 

Infrastructure Debt   5 4-6% 

Private Equity   5 4-6% 

Cash   0 0-10% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 30



                                                                                 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 
Report for: 
 

 
Pensions Committee 
23rd June 2014 

Item 
number 

 
 

 

 
Title: 
 

 
Pension Fund – Work Plan 2014-15 

 

 
Report authorised 
by : 
 

 
 
 
Assistant Director – Finance (CFO) 

 

 
Lead Officer: 
 

George Bruce, Head of Finance – Treasury & 
Pensions 
George.bruce@haringey.gov.uk 
020 8489 8621 

 
 

 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 

 
Report for Non Key Decision 
 

 
1.  Describe the issue under consideration  
 
1.1 The purpose of the paper is to identify topics that will come to the attention of 

the Committee in the year to March 2015 and seek Members input into 
futures agenda’s. 

 
2.  Cabinet Member Introduction 
 
2.1 Not applicable.  
 
3.  Recommendations  
 
3.1  The Committee is invited to identify additional issues for inclusion within the 

work plan.  
 
4.  Other options considered 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5. Background information  
 
5.1 It is best practice for a Pension Fund to prepare a work plan.  This plan sets 

out the key activities anticipated in the coming municipal year in the areas of 
governance, members / employers, investment and accounting. 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 31



                                                                                 

Page 2 of 5 

 
6. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer & financial implications  
 
6.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
7. Assistant Director of Corporate Governance comments and Legal 

Implications  
  
7.1 The Council as administering authority for the Haringey Pension Fund has the 

power to invest fund monies as set out in Local Government  Pension 
Scheme (Management and Investment Funds) Regulations 2009. 

 
7.2  There are no specific legal implications arising from this report 
 
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 
8.1 Not applicable. 
 
9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 
 9.1 Not applicable. 
 
10.  Policy Implications  
 
10.1 None. 
 
11.  Use of Appendices 
 
 None   
 
12  Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
12.1 Not applicable. 
 
13. Governance Issues  
 
Terms of Reference 
 
13.1 The terms of reference of the committee are included within the meeting 

papers. Through its role in “Exercising all the Council’s functions as 
“Administrating Authority”” the committee has the responsibility for the 
governance of the Local Government Pension Scheme in Haringey.  A 
significant amount of the Committee’s time will be devoted to investment 
matters although it should be noted that employer and member issues fall 
within the remit of the Committee. Given, however the increased emphasis on 
governance under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (see sections 13.5 to 
13.8 of this report) it is anticipated that this, as well as investment issues, will 
form a significant element of the Committee’s activity. 

 
13.2 The terms of reference should be kept under review and revised both to 

reflect changes in regulation but also the Committee’s appraisal of its role. 

Page 32



                                                                                 

Page 3 of 5 

 
Member Training 
 
13.3 Pension’s is a specialist area involving the use of terminology that may be 

unfamiliar to new committee members.  Training on all aspects of pensions is 
vital before Members are asked to consider technical issues. 

 
13.4 An introduction to pensions session, presented by officers and the 

independent advisor, was held on 19th June.  It is proposed that a follow up 
session is held in July at which the independent advisor, actuary and 
investment consultant will outline the background to the investment strategy 
and the link between the strategy and the pension liabilities.  It is also 
suggested that a rolling programme of training is provided prior to each 
Committee meeting on both general topics and issues specific to the meeting 
agenda.  This training will mainly be provided by the independent advisor and 
officers, with involvement from advisors, fund managers and the custodian. 
This programme of training cover areas of knowledge and skills identified in 
the CIPFA Pensions Knowledge and Skills Framework plus such other issues 
as are desirable for members of the Pensions Committee to have an 
understanding of. 

 
Regulations 
 
13.5 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 will be fully implemented By April 

2015.  This will drastically change the governance framework under which 
pensions matters are managed and monitored.   

 
13.6 Due to the significance of the proposed changes, a consultation on their 

implications will commence mid June with final regulations in place by 
September 2014. 

 
13.7 In addition to the regulations, the Pension Regulator, who has been given 

additional oversight responsibilities for LGPS administrative (but not 
investment) issues, will issue best practice guidance this summer relating to 
the controls and reporting that should be in place. 

 
13.8 It is anticipated that a large proportion of the Committee’s time in the next 6-9 

months will be devoted to considering the options around the implementation 
of the regulations and code of practice.  

 
Member and Employer Issues 
 
14. Member and Employer Issues 
 
14.1  A revised schedule of contributions for each employer has been implemented 

from 1st April 2014.  In most cases this comprises two elements; a rate linked 
to earnings and also a deficit lump sum.  Officers will need to closely monitor 
that employers are paying the correct rate.   

 
14.2 The revised benefit structure involved in the move from a final salary scheme 

to a career average pension will increase the complexity of the pension 

Page 33



                                                                                 

Page 4 of 5 

administration function. This will potentially increase the emphasis that, over 
time, the committee, will need to give to pension administrative issues. 

 
15.  Investment Strategy and Fund Managers 
 
15.1 A detailed strategy review was completed in 2013-14 and it is not planned to 

repeat this exercise in the next twelve months, although the continued 
appropriateness of the strategy should be monitored.  Material changes in the 
value of the assets, the pension liabilities, prevailing investment returns or 
interest rates will all impact on the continued appropriateness of the strategy.   

 
15.2 Three aspects of the implementation of the revised strategy are currently in 

progress: 
 

• The appointment and funding of the new multi-sector credit (CQS) and 
infrastructure debt (Allianz) mandates. 

• The increased funding to bring the property portfolio to 10% of the overall 
fund. 

 
15.3 The main item carried forward from the strategy review is the required level of 

inflation protection and whether this can be enhanced through the use of 
leverage index linked funds.    

 
15.4 Other matters arising from the strategy that will feature on future agenda’s 

are: 
 

• The make up of the passive equity portfolio, in particular alternatives to 
market capitalisation based benchmarks. 

• Additional commitments to private equity to maintain the 5% allocation. 
 
15.5 The investment strategy is designed to generate an improvement in the 

funding level (bring assets into line with the value of pension liabilities).  Over 
the last year, the funding level has improved by 3% to 73%.  Improvements in 
the funding level offer the opportunity to take less investment risk through 
increasing the linkage between changes in the value of investments and 
pension liabilities.  When these changes take place and how they will be 
implemented should be documented to ensure that opportunities to lock in 
favourable movements are not missed.  It is intended to develop a long term 
investment plan linked to liabilities during the next year.  

 
16.  Collective Investment Vehicle 
 
16.1 The London Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) is expected to be operational 

in Q1, 2015.  Its role is to act on behalf of London LGPS to appoint and 
monitor fund managers, thereby generating fee savings, improving 
investment performance and increasing investment opportunities.   Passive 
equity will be the first asset class for the CIV.  Participation is voluntary and 
the Committee will be asked whether it wishes to switch the current 
BlackRock and Legal and General mandates to the CIV.  Much will depend 
on the fee rates that the CIV is able to negotiate. 

 

Page 34



                                                                                 

Page 5 of 5 

17 Routine Business 
 
17.1 Other issues that will feature on agenda’s include: 
 

• Updates to statutory documents; the Statement of Investment Principles, 
Funding Strategy Statement, Governance Compliance Statement and 
Communications Policy.  Other policy documents, such as disputes resolution 
procedures should also be reviewed. 

• The approach to responsible investment and ESG issues. 

• The setting and monitoring of budgets. 

• The review of the fund’s annual financial statements. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 17 

 

 

 
Report for: 
 

 
Pensions Committee 
20 June 2014 

Item 
number 

 

 

 
Title: 
 

 
Pension Fund Quarterly Update 

 

 
Report authorised 
by : 
 

 
 
 
Assistant Director – Finance (CFO) 

 

 
Lead Officer: 
 

George Bruce, Head of Finance – Treasury & 
Pensions 

george.bruce@haringey.gov.uk 
020 8489 3726 

 
 

 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 

 
Report for Non Key Decision 
 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration  
 
1.1 To report the following in respect of the three months to 31st March 2014: 

• Investment asset allocation  

• Investment performance 

• Responsible investment activity 

• Budget management 

• Late payment of contributions 

• Communications 
 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 
2.1 Not applicable.  
 
3. Recommendations  
 
3.1 That the information provided in respect of the activity in the three months to 

31st March 2014 is noted. 
 
4. Other options considered 
 
4.1 None. 

Agenda Item 9Page 37



 

Page 2 of 17 

 

 
5. Background information  
 
5.1 This update report is produced on a quarterly basis.  The Local Government 

Pension Scheme Regulations require the Committee to review investment 
performance on a quarterly basis and sections 13 and 14 provide the 
information for this.  Appendix 1 shows the targets which have been agreed 
with the fund managers.   

 
5.2 The Pension Fund has a responsible investment policy and section 15 of this 

report monitors action taken in line with it.  The remainder of the report covers 
various issues on which the Committee or its predecessor body have 
requested they receive regular updates. 

 
5.3 Information on communication with stakeholders has been provided by 

officers in Human Resources and included in section 18. 
 
6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications  
 
6.1 The investment performance figures in section 14 show the impact of the 

introduction of passive fund managers in that generally the variance from 
target has reduced. The negative performance over three and five years 
reflects the underperformance of the private equity portfolio that has a 
demanding public equity plus benchmark.  Over longer time periods, the fund 
has achieved a return in excess of the average local authority. 

 
7. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications  

 
7.1 The Council as administering authority for the Haringey Pension Fund 

(“Fund”) has an obligation to keep the performance of its investment 
managers under review. In this respect the Council must, at least every three 
months review the investments made by investment managers for the Fund 
and any other actions taken by them in relation to it; 
 

7.2 Periodically the Council must consider whether or not to retain the investment 
managers. In particular members should note the continuing negative 
performance compared with the target benchmarks and the reason stated in 
this report as to why this is the case; 
 

7.3 In carrying out its review proper advice must be obtained about the variety of 
investments that have been made and the suitability and types of investment; 
 

7.4 All monies must be invested in accordance with the Council’s investment 
policy and members of the Committee should keep this duty in mind when 
considering this report and have regard to advice given to them. 

 
 

Page 38



 

Page 3 of 17 

 

 
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 
8.1 The Local Government Pension Scheme is a defined benefit open scheme 

enabling all employees of the Local Authority to participate. There are no 
impacts in terms of equality from the recommendations contained within this 
report. 

 
9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 
9.1 Not applicable 
 
10.  Policy Implications  
 
10.1  None. 

 
11.  Use of Appendices 
 
11.1 Appendix 1: Investment Managers’ mandates, benchmarks and targets.  
 
12.  Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
12.1 Not applicable 

Page 39



 

Page 4 of 17 

 

 
13. Investment Update 
 

 13.1 Fund Holdings at 31st March 2014  
 

Total Portfolio Allocation by Manager & Asset Class 

            31/03/2014 & 30/04/2014 

Value Value 
 

Value 
 

Allocation 
 

Strategic  
 31.12.13 31.03.14 

 
30.04.14 

 
30.04.2014 

 
Allocation 

 

  
£'000 £'000 

 
£'000 

 
% 

 
% 

   

Equities 
  UK  176,383 173,136 176,875 19.7% 17.5% 

North America 255,655 257,969 256,652 28.6% 25.3% 

Europe 82,680 78,487 78,764 8.8% 8.6% 

Japan 35,741 29,449 28,329 3.1% 4.1% 

Asia Pacific 35,762 34,644 34,931 3.9% 4.0% 

Emerging Markets 89,426 88,730 87,955 9.8% 10.5% 

Total Equities 
 

675,647 662,415 
 

663,506 73.9% 70.0% 

   Bonds 
  

Index Linked 117,958 122,199 
 

123,397 13.8% 
 

15.0% 

Property 
 

CBRE 56,691 68,473 73,188 8.1% 
 

10.0% 

Private equity 
 

Pantheon 34,527 35,333 34,698 3.9% 
 

5.0% 

Cash & NCA 
 

5,883 9,204 3,253 0.3% 
 

0.0% 

  

Total 
Assets 

 
890,706 

 
897,624   898,042 

 
100.0% 

 
100.0% 

Fund  Managers 
 

Legal & General 244,638 248,964 248,106 27.6% 
 

29.3% 

   BlackRock 520,281 535,650 538,797 60.0% 
 

55.7% 

  

  

  

  

  

Page 40



 

Page 5 of 17 

 

 

The value of the fund increased by £6.9 million between December 2013 and 
March 2014.  Equities gains were the main contributor to the market 
movements.   
 
 The recovery in equity markets in the last two years has seen the equity 
weighting rise to over 75%, in excess of its previous strategic weighting (70%).  
The other asset classes, mainly property remain, underweight.  The January 
2014 Corporate Committee meeting agreed to rebalance property back to its 
strategic allocation of 10%, which will involve additional property investments of 
approximately £35 million funded from sales of equities. As at March 2014 an 
additional £19.2 million of property had been purchased.    
 
14. Investment Performance Update: to 31ST March 2014 
 
Appendix 1 provides details of the benchmarks and targets the fund managers 
have been set.   The tables below show the performance in the quarter January 
to March 2014.  
 
14.1 Whole Fund 
 

 Return Benchmark (Under)/Out WM LA average 

Jan-Mar 2014 1.15% 1.18% (0.03%) 0.9% 

One Year 5.03% 5.38% (0.35%) 6.4% 

Three Years 7.82% 8.23% (0.41%) 7.5% 

Five Years 12.81% 13.69% (0.88%) 12.7% 

 

One year Return Benchmark Under/out WM LA Average 

Equities 

   

  

UK 8.89 8.81 0.08 11.3 

Developed 

Europe 18.05 18.28 -0.23 15.1 

North 

America 10.19 10.3 -0.11 11.9 

Japan -2.02 -1.56 -0.46 0.5 

Asia ex Japan -6.56 -6.59 0.03 -7.1 

Emerging -10.87 -10.79 -0.08 -5.1 

  

   

  

I L gilts -4.48 -4.45 -0.03 -4.4 

Property 12.50 12.04 0.46 11.0 

Private equity 8.04 14.45 -6.41 5.4 

  

   

  

Total 5.03 5.38 -0.35 6.4 

     

     

  

Page 41



 

Page 6 of 17 

 

Five years Return Benchmark Under/out WM LA Average 

Equities 

   

  

UK 16.19 16.36 -0.17 17.5 

Developed 

Europe 14.09 14.54 -0.45 15.0 

North 

America 17.18 17.15 0.03 17.2 

Japan 9.45 7.16 2.29 9.3 

Asia ex Japan 14.99 15.56 -0.57 14.9 

Emerging 12.82 11.21 1.61 12.6 

  

   

  

Index linked 

gilts 9.55 8.78 0.77 8.6 

Property 6.51 8.04 -1.50 7.7 

Private equity 4.20 21.11 -16.91 6.0 

  

   

  

Total 12.81 13.69 -0.88 12.7 

 

• All four time periods indicate under performance compared with the 
benchmarks, more so in the longer 3 and 5 year periods. 

• Equity and index linked gilts, which are passively managed, show some 
variability compared to the benchmarks, but not significant differences. 

• The main detractor from performance is private equity and in the five 
year period, property.  Private equity has a public equity plus 5% target, 
which it has not achieved. 

• Compared with the average local authority, the fund has exceeded the 
average return over the quarter, three and five years.  For the one year 
period, the total return is less than the average local authority due to the 
relative returns from UK equities. 

• The funds higher than average allocation to equities and lower than 
average allocation to fixed income and alternatives have compensated 
for lower asset class returns over five years. 

 
14.2 BlackRock Investment Management   
 

 Return Benchmark (Under)/Out 

Jan-Mar 2014 1.07% 1.26% (0.19%) 

One Year 6.68% 6.51% 0.17% 

• Total Value at 31/03/14: £535.6 million 

• BlackRock manages equities and index linked passively. 

• Further details of returns at geographic level are given in section 14.7, which 
indicates underperformance against the Japanese index, which is being 
investigated. 

 
14.3 Legal & General Investment Management 
 

Page 42



 

Page 7 of 17 

 

 Return Benchmark Variance 

Jan-Mar 2014 0.06% 0.12% (0.06%) 

One Year (0.38%) (0.41%) 0.03% 

• Total Value at 31/03/14: £248.9 million  

• Variances as regional level are minimal.   
 
14.4 CBRE Global Investors 

 

 Return Benchmark (Under)/Out 

Jan-Mar 2014 4.42% 3.30% 1.12% 

One Year 12.50% 12.04% 0.46% 

Three Years 5.50% 6.53% (1.03%) 

Five Years 6.51% 8.04% (1.53%) 

• Total Value at 31/03/14: £68.5 million 

• Although performance in the quarter and year exceeded benchmark longer 
term terms have fallen below benchmark.  The target is to out perform by 1% 
p.a. 

• Recently, the UK portfolio has exceeded benchmark, but the overall portfolio 
has suffered from exposure to Italian and German funds. 
   

 
14.5 Pantheon 

 

 Return Distributions 
in period 

Drawdowns  
in period 

% 
drawdown 

Jan-Mar 2014 4.83% £1.08m £0.20m  

One Year 8.04% £3.94m £1.93m  

Since inception 4.51% £8.51m £33.00m 69.4% 

• Total Value at 31/03/14: £35.3 million 

• Distributions exceeded drawdowns during the quarter as the funds moved into 
the distribution phase of their cycles. 

• The performance target is the MCSI Worlds plus 5%, which for 12 months is 
14.45% and 3 years 14.85%.  Actual returns for three ears net of fees is 8.8%.  
The funds are still relatively young for a true picture of long term returns to 
emerge.  It is only when the fund is substantially realised will a true picture of 
performance emerge. The performance benchmark (MSCI plus 5% net of 
fees) is challenging. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 14.6 In house cash 
 

Page 43



 

Page 8 of 17 

 

 Value Average 
Credit Rating 

Average 
Maturity (days) 

Return 
 

At 31/03/14 £1.74m AAA 1 0.25% 

At 31/12/13 £0.92m AAA 1 0.22% 

At 30/09/13 £2.73m AAA 1 0.33% 

At 30/06/13 £3.18m AAA 1 0.33%  

 
14.7 Equity Market Performance 
 

 

3 months 

 

12 months 

 

Allocations 

 

Return  Benchmark Difference Return  Benchmark Difference Actual Target 

Legal & General 

UK Equity -0.60 -0.63 0.03 8.96 8.81 0.15 9.28% 8.87% 

North Amer equity 1.19 1.19 0.00 10.29 10.30 -0.01 12.81% 12.97% 

Europe equity 2.98 3.03 -0.05 18.02 18.28 -0.26 15.46% 14.67% 

Asia Pac equity 0.94 1.00 -0.06 -6.62 -6.59 -0.03 6.69% 6.83% 

Japan equity -5.85 -5.99 0.14 -1.38 -1.56 0.18 10.50% 10.58% 

Emerging equity -0.78 -0.75 -0.03 -10.88 -10.79 -0.09 36.01% 35.84% 

Index linked 3.58 3.56 0.02 -4.38 -4.45 0.07 9.25% 10.24% 

  

total 0.06 0.12 -0.06 -0.38 -0.41 0.03 100.00% 100.00% 

BlackRock 

UK Equity -0.62 -0.63 0.01 9.01 8.81 0.20 28.13% 26.75% 

North Amer equity 1.18 1.19 -0.01 10.04 10.30 -0.26 41.07% 38.60% 

Europe equity 3.02 3.03 -0.01 18.15 18.28 -0.13 8.10% 7.72% 

Asia Pac equity 0.72 1.00 -0.28 -6.50 -6.59 0.09 3.51% 3.57% 

Japan equity -5.96 -5.99 0.03 -2.89 -1.56 -1.33 1.76% 1.80% 

Emerging equity 3.59 3.56 0.03 -4.37 -4.45 0.08 7.43% 21.56% 

Index linked   

total 1.07 1.26 -0.19 6.68 6.51 0.17 100.00% 100.00% 
 

  
The above table breaks down the performance of L&G and BlackRock at regional 
level.  Returns are generally close to benchmark.  The relative return for BlackRock’s 
Japanese equity portfolio is being investigated. 

Page 44



                                                                                 

Page 9 of 17 

15. Responsible Investment Activity in the three months ended 31st March 2014 

BlackRock Legal & General LAPFF 

15.1 Environmental Issues 

 Together with other institutional 
investors, we engaged with a number of 
companies in the consumer brand and 
extractive sectors, to understand how 
tax risks are being managed in 
companies which face increasing 
pressures from consumers and 
regulations.  We have put together a 
discussion paper on this complicated 
subject, which we intend to share with 
other investors and help develop the 
dialogue on the expectation of future 
disclosure from companies. 
 
 

 
The LAPFF March 2014 engagement 
report has not been received. 

 

BlackRock Legal & General LAPFF 

15.2 Governance / Remuneration Issues 

We engaged with several issuers to discuss 
governance more broadly. Common areas 
discussed included corporate strategy and 
its link to sustainability, and risk evaluation 
including an assessment of key risks: 
 

Sports Direct 
 
A meeting was held with the Chairman 
to discuss the proposed new incentive 
Plan for the Deputy Chairman (Founder 
and significant shareholder), which 

  
 

P
a
g
e
 4

5



                                                                                 

Page 10 of 17 

BlackRock Legal & General LAPFF 

We examined board composition, skill set 
and director induction programmes in light of 
minor changes at sub-committee level. 
 
We engaged with the Chairman of a 
financial services company to discuss the 
functioning of the current board given recent 
appointments, the board composition and 
skill set, ongoing refreshment/succession 
planning for both executives and 
nonexecutives, and planned board 
evaluations. We also reviewed progress in 
getting the relationship with regulators back 
on track, key risks for the business, and 
strategy including a discussion on the US 
business. 
 
We attended a regular governance update 
for a major extractives industry issuer. We 
used this opportunity to discuss the 
company’s sustainability programme and 
how it links to corporate strategy, time 
horizon, risk evaluation, alternative energies 
and future outlook of portfolio. 
 
As was the case in the previous quarter, we 
have continued to experience a substantial 

would have delivered 8 million shares 
worth approximately £66 million, if 
certain targets were met over the next 
two years. We were keen to understand 
why the board was proposing an equity 
plan for the Deputy Chairman again 
when a similar plan had been rejected 
by shareholders in 2012. Days before 
the extraordinary general meeting 
(EGM) the plan was withdrawn due to 
lack of shareholder support. We will 
continue to engage with the company.    
 
 
First Group 
 
We met the new Chairman of the 
company to discuss his views and plans 
to turnaround the company following 
long-term poor operational performance 
and a large rights issue in 2013. We 
discussed a range of issues including 
the plans for underperforming business 
units, the balance sheet, the board, 
union relations and dividend policy. We 
will continue to engage with the 
company to enhance shareholder value. 

P
a

g
e
 4

6



                                                                                 

Page 11 of 17 

BlackRock Legal & General LAPFF 

increase in the number of engagements with 
UK issuers on executive remuneration 
matters. During the quarter, we also noted 
an increase in the number of UK issuers 
wishing to merge their short- and long-term 
incentive schemes into a single incentive 
vehicle for their executive team. With the 
purpose of simplifying their remuneration 
practices, some boards have opted for 
annual performance measures. The long-
term element is retained with a deferral 
mechanism spanning three to five years and 
subject to further performance conditions 
and/or underpin. Although highlighting 
certain concerns over long-term alignment 
risks, BlackRock has been broadly 
supportive of these new structures during its 
engagements. 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

BlackRock Legal & General LAPFF 

15.3 Other Engagement activity 

In a joint engagement with our portfolio JP Morgan  

P
a
g
e
 4

7



                                                                                 

Page 12 of 17 

BlackRock Legal & General LAPFF 

management team, we met with a board 
member of a British retail group to discuss a 
performance-based equity award for the 
executive deputy chairman. We sought to 
understand the structure of the scheme and 
the board’s rationale for the proposal. 
Although the executive deputy chairman did 
not receive any remuneration at the time, it 
was decided to vote against the plan at the 
extraordinary shareholder meeting based on 
the timing of the award and its size. 
 
 
 

 
We met with an independent board 
member to further our engagement with 
the company. We discussed board 
structure, the risk management process, 
employee management, as well as 
financial regulation and the company’s 
culture and emerging issues in this area. 
We shall continue to strengthen our 
discussions with the company. 
 
 

 

P
a

g
e
 4

8



                                                                                 

Page 13 of 17 

 
16. Budget Management – 12 months to 31st March 2014 

 

 Prior 
year 

2012-13 
£’000 

Current 
year 

2013-14 
£’000 

Change in 
expenditure 

 
£’000 

Contributions & Benefit related expenditure 

Income    
 Employee Contributions 8,800 8,554 246 
 Employer Contributions 32,000 30,461 1,539 
 Transfer Values in 4,000 2,434 1,566 

Total Income 44,800 41,449 3,351 

 

Expenditure    
 Pensions & Benefits (40,000) (40,417) 417 
 Transfer Values Paid (5,200) (3,277) (1,923) 
 Administrative Expenses (800) (801) 1 

Total Expenditure (46,000) (44,495)) (1,505) 

 

Net of Contributions & Benefits (1,200) (3,046) 1,846 

 

Returns on investment 

 Net Investment Income  3,600 2,578 1,022 
 Investment Management Expenses (1,600) (1,658) 58 

Net Return on Investment 2,000 920 1,080 

    

Total 800 (2,126) 2,926 

 
 

The fund has moved into a position in which expenditure exceeds income as active 
membership fall and numbers of pensioners’ increases.  Member and employer 
contribution increases in 2014-15 will mitigate this tread. 
 
The income shown for 2013-14 is virtually all from property as income from other 
asset classes is automatically re-invested and shown within the change in market 
value.  The fall in income is due to equity income now being included in the change 
in value of investments. 
 
  

Page 49



                                                                                 

Page 14 of 17 

17. Late Payment of Contributions 
 

17.1 The table below provides details of the employers who have made late 
payments during the last quarter. These employers have been contacted and 
reminded of their obligations to remit contributions on time. 

 

Employer Occasions 
late 

Average 
Number of 
days late 

Average 
monthly 

contributions(£) 

Mulberry 1 19 14,500 

Lordship Lane 1 3 13,700 

Hartsbrook 1 2 3,200 

TLC 2 4 4,183 

 
18. Communication Policy 
 
18.1 Two sets of regulations govern pension communications in the LGPS: The 

Disclosure of Information Regulations 1996 (as amended) and Regulation 67 
of the Local Government Pensions Scheme (Administration) Regulations 
2008 as amended. 

 
18.2 In March 2011, the Council approved the Pensions Administration Strategy 

Statement (PASS).  The PASS sets out time scales and procedures which 
are compliant with the requirements of the Disclosure of Information 
Regulations. The PASS is a framework within which the Council as the 
Administering Authority for the Fund can work together with its employing 
bodies to ensure that the necessary statutory requirements are being met. 

 
18.3 In June 2008 the Council approved the Policy Statement on Communications 

with scheme members and employing bodies. The Policy Statement identifies 
the means by which the Council communicates with the Fund members, the 
employing bodies, elected members, and other stakeholders. These cover a 
wide range of activities which include meetings, workshops, individual 
correspondence and use of the internet. In recent times, the Pensions web 
page has been developed to provide a wide range of employee guides, forms 
and policy documents. Where possible, Newsletters and individual notices are 
sent by email to reduce printing and postage costs. 

 
18.4 The requirement to publish a Communications Policy Statement recognises 

the importance that transparent effective communication has on the proper 
management of the LGPS.  

 
18.5 During the third quarter of 2013-14, one of the Council’s AVC providers 

Prudential gave a presentation to staff on the services they offer. In 
December the Council met with the other employer bodies participating in the 

Page 50



                                                                                 

Page 15 of 17 

Fund, to share information on the 2014 actuarial valuation exercise and to 
provide a brief outline on the new scheme to be introduced from April 2014. 

Page 51



                                                                                 

Page 16 of 17 

 
Appendix 1 – Investment Managers mandates, benchmarks and targets 
 
 
 

Manager 
% of Total 
Portfolio 

Mandate Benchmark Performance Target 

BlackRock Investment 
Management 

55.7% 
Global Equities 

& Bonds 
See overleaf 

Index (passively 
managed) 

Legal & General Investment 
Management 

29.3% 
Global Equities 

& Bonds 
See overleaf 

Index (passively 
managed) 

CBRE Global Investors 10% Property 
IPD UK Pooled 

Property Funds All 
Balanced Index 

+1% gross of fees p.a. 
over a rolling 5 yr period 

Pantheon Private Equity 5% Private Equity 
MSCI World Index plus 

5% 
+ 0.75% gross of fees 

p.a. 

Total 100%            

 
 
  

P
a

g
e
 5

2



                                                                                 

Page 17 of 17 

. 

Asset Class Benchmark BlackRock 
Investment 

Management 

Legal & General 
Investment 

Management 

Total 

UK Equities FTSE All Share 14.9% 2.6% 17.5% 

     

Overseas Equities  28.8% 23.7% 52.5% 

North America FT World Developed North 
America GBP Unhedged 

21.5% 3.8% 25.3% 

Europe ex UK FT World Developed Europe X 
UK GBP Unhedged 

4.3% 4.3% 8.6% 

Pacific ex Japan FT World Developed Pacific X 
Japan GBP Unhedged 

2.0% 2.0% 4.0% 

Japan FT World Developed Japan 
GBP Unhedged 

1.0% 3.1% 4.1% 

Emerging Markets FT World Global Emerging 
Markets GBP Unhedged 

0.0% 10.5% 10.5% 

     

Index Linked Gilts FTA Index Linked Over 5 
Years Index 

12.0% 3.0% 15.0% 

  55.7% 29.3% 85.0% 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

3



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 
Report for: 
 

 
Pensions Committee 
23rd June 2014 

Item 
number 

 

 

 
Title: 
 

 
Pension Fund Consultation 
 

 

 
Report authorised 
by : 
 

Assistant Director – Finance (CFO) 

 

 
Lead Officer: 
 

George Bruce Head of Finance – Treasury & Pensions 
George.bruce@haringey.gov.uk  
020 8489 3726 

 
 

 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 

 
Report for Non Key Decision 
 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration  
 
1.1 The DCLG has issued a consultation document “Local Government 

Pension Scheme: Opportunities for collaboration, cost savings and 
efficiencies”.  A proposed response is attached for consideration. 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 
2.1 Not applicable.  
 
3. Recommendations  
 
3.1 That members approve the proposed response to DCLG attached to 

this report and authorise the Assistant Director – Finance to send the 
response to DCLG on behalf of the Committee. 

 
4. Other options considered 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5. Background information  
 
5.1 The Government launched a call for Evidence on the structure of 

LGPS in summer 2013 starting a debate on the structure of the LGPS 

Agenda Item 10Page 55



                                                                                 

Page 2 of 3 

and in particular whether merger into a smaller number of funds was 
appropriate. 

 
5.2  This consultation document follows on from the call for evidence and 

proposes that the current LGPS structure is maintained, with individual 
local authorities remaining responsible for their own pension fund and 
directing the investment strategy for their fund.  This is in line with 
Haringey’s response to the call for evidence.   

 
5.3 The changes proposed within the consultation document cover two 

main areas: 
 

a) That local authorities share investment management through the 
establishment of collective investment vehicles (“CIV’s”), and 
 

b) Greater use is made of passive management to reduce costs and 
avoid underperformance relative to benchmarks. 

 
5.4 Haringey has demonstrated its support for the first initiative by 

contributing to the establishment costs of the London CIV, expected to 
be operational in Q1, 2015. 

 
5.5 Most of the pension fund’s assets are managed passively, which is in 

line with (b) above.  However, we do point out in our response that: 
 

• Saving fees will not by itself materially reduce deficits and contribution 
levels, 

• The use of CIV’s should be voluntary and there should be choice and 
competition between a small number of CIV’s 

• Some asset classes can or should not be managed passively, 

• Investors who can demonstrate skills in active management should 
not be prevented from investing actively.  

 
5.6 A draft response is attached, which has been discussed with the 

independent advisor.  Overall, the response is supportive of the 
Government’s proposals, although suggesting that they do not tackle 
the main issues of deficits and high contribution rates.  Of the four 
options relating to the use of passive and active investment techniques 
we propose “comply or explain” on a rigorous partly independently 
verified basis so as to ensure active management is only undertaken 
when its use and likely success can be justified. 

 
5.7 The deadline for responding is 11 July 2014. 
 
6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and financial Implications  
 

Page 56



                                                                                 

Page 3 of 3 

6.1 The proposals are part of a process of tightening up oversight and 
governance standards in LGPS and examining opportunities to reduce 
the burden of costs to support the scheme. The proposals will not alter 
the fundamental role of the Council in administering the Haringey fund 
or setting an investment strategy.  They will offer additional investment 
implementation opportunities if offered on a voluntary basis that could 
save costs. 

 
7. Assistant Director of Corporate Governance comments and Legal 

Implications  
 

7.1 The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance has been consulted 
on the contents of this report.  The response is part of a consultation 
process being undertaken by the DCLG. 

 
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 
8.1 There are no equalities issues arising from this report. 
 
9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 
9.1 Not applicable 
 
10.  Policy Implications  
 
10.1  None. 
 

11.  Use of Appendices 
 

11.1 Appendix 1: Consultation document. 

 Appendix 2: draft response to the consultation. 

 
12.  Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
12.1 Not applicable. 
 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 

May 2014 
Department for Communities and Local Government 

Local Government Pension Scheme: 
Opportunities for collaboration, cost savings 
and efficiencies 

Consultation 

 

Page 59



 

2 
 

© Crown copyright, 2014 

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown. 

 

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the 
terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-
government-licence/ or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, 
or email: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk. 

This document/publication is also available on our website at www.gov.uk/dclg 

If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, email contactus@communities.gov.uk or write 
to us at: 

Department for Communities and Local Government 
Eland House 
Bressenden Place 
London  
SW1E 5DU 
Telephone: 030 3444 0000  

For all our latest news and updates follow us on Twitter: https://twitter.com/CommunitiesUK  

May 2014 

ISBN: 978-1-4098-4190-6

Page 60



 

3 
 

Contents 

 

 

1. The consultation process and how to respond...................................................... 4 

2. Introduction and background .................................................................................. 7 

3. The case for change ............................................................................................... 11 

4. Proposals for reform .............................................................................................. 18 

 Proposal 1: Common investment vehicles ............................................................ 18 

 Proposal 2: Passive fund management of listed assets ....................................... 20 

5. Additional considerations ...................................................................................... 24 

 

 

Page 61



 

4 
 

1. The consultation process and how to 
respond  

 
Scope of the consultation 

Topic of this 
consultation: 

The structure of the Local Government Pension Scheme and 
opportunities to reduce administration and investment 
management costs.  

Scope of this 
consultation: 

The consultation sets out the evidence for proposals for reforms 
to the Local Government Pension Scheme and opportunities to 
deliver savings of £660 million a year for local taxpayers. The 

set out 
in section four, and asks respondents to consider how if adopted, 
these reforms might be implemented most effectively.  

Geographical 
scope: 

This consultation applies to England and Wales. 

Impact 
Assessment: 

It is not possible to provide an impact assessment at this stage 
as the detailed mechanism needed to implement the proposed 
reforms is still being developed.  

 

Basic Information 

To: The consultation is aimed at all parties with an interest in the 
Local Government Pension Scheme and in particular those listed 

 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-
pension-scheme-regulations-information-on-who-should-be-
consulted   

Body/bodies 
responsible for 
the consultation: 

Secretary of State, Department for Communities and Local 
Government.  

The consultation will be administered by the Workforce, Pay and 
Pensions division. 

Duration: The consultation will last for 10 weeks, opening on 1 May and 
closing on 11 July 2014. 

Enquiries: Enquires should be sent to Victoria Edwards. Please email 
LGPSReform@communities.gsi.gov.uk or call 0303 444 4057. 

How to respond: Responses to this consultation should be submitted to 
LGPSReform@communities.gsi.gov.uk by 11 July 2014.  

Electronic responses are preferred. However, you can also write 
to: 

Victoria Edwards 

Page 62



 

5 
 

Department for Communities and Local Government 
Zone 5/F5, Eland House  
Bressenden Place 
London, SW1E 5DU 

Please state whether you are responding as an individual or 
representing the views of an organisation. If responding on 
behalf of an organisation, please give a summary of the people 
and organisations it represents and where relevant, who else you 
have consulted in reaching your conclusions. 

After the 
consultation: 

The responses to the consultation will be analysed and a 
Government response published. Should any legislative changes 
be needed, a further consultation will follow.  

Agreement with 
the Consultation 
Principles: 

This consultation has been drafted in accordance with the 
Consultation Principles.  

 

Background 

Getting to this 
stage: 

This consultation has been developed drawing on three sources of 
evidence: 

 A call for evidence on the future structure of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme, which ran from 21 June to 27 
September 2013. 133 responses were received and analysed, 
helping to inform this consultation.  

 An analysis of the responses to the call for evidence provided 
by the Shadow Scheme Advisory Board. 

 Supplementary cost-benefits analysis of proposals for reform 
commissioned from Hymans Robertson using the Contestable 
Policy Fund. The commission did not extend to making 
recommendations. 

 
The Shadow Board

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-
pension-scheme-opportunities-for-collaboration-cost-savings-and-
efficiencies. 

Previous 
engagement: 

As outlined above, this consultation follows a call for evidence that 
gave anyone with an interest in the Scheme the opportunity to 

The call for evidence was run in conjunction with the Local 
Government Association and the responses were shared with the 
Shadow Scheme Advisory Board, which provided the Minister for 
Local Government with their recommendations and analysis of the 
responses. 
 
The call for evidence also drew on a round table event that took 
place on 16 May 2013 with representatives of administering 

Page 63



 

6 
 

authorities, employers, trade unions, the actuarial profession and 
academia. This event discussed the potential for increased co-
operation within the Scheme, including the possibility of structural 
change to the existing 89 funds.  

 

Additional copies  

1.1 This consultation paper is available on the Government  website at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-
opportunities-for-collaboration-cost-savings-and-efficiencies 

Confidentiality and data protection  

1.2 Information provided in response to this consultation, including personal information, 
may be published or disclosed in accordance with the access to information regimes 
(these are primarily the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the Data Protection Act 
1998 and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004).  

1.3 If you want the information that you provide to be treated as confidential, please be 
aware that, under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, there is a statutory code of 
practice with which public authorities must comply and which deals, amongst other 
things, with obligations of confidence. In view of this it would be helpful if you could 
explain to us why you regard the information you have provided as confidential. If we 
receive a request for disclosure of the information we will take full account of your 
explanation, but we cannot give an assurance that confidentiality can be maintained in 
all circumstances. An automatic confidentiality disclaimer generated by your IT system 
will not, in itself, be regarded as binding on the Department.  

1.4 The Department will process your personal data in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act 1998 and in the majority of circumstances this will mean that your 
personal data will not be disclosed to third parties. Individual responses will not be 
acknowledged unless specifically requested.  

Help with queries  

1.5 Questions about the policy issues raised in the document can be sent to 
LGPSReform@communities.gsi.gov.uk.  

1.6 A copy of the Consultation Principles is at www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/resource-
library/consultation-principles-guidance. Are you satisfied that this consultation has 
followed these principles? If not or you have any other observations about how we can 
improve the process please email: consultationcoordinator@communities.gsi.gov.uk  

1.7 Alternatively, you can write to:  

DCLG Consultation Co-ordinator,  
Zone 8/J6, Eland House,  
Bressenden Place  
London SW1E 5DU. 

Page 64



 

7 
 

2. Introduction and background 

Introduction 

2.1 The Government believes that there is scope for significant savings, of £660 million 
per year, to be achieved through reform of the Local Government Pension Scheme. To 
that end, from 21 June to 27 September 2013, the Government ran a call for evidence 
on structural reform of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The paper asked 
respondents to consider what might be done to improve fund performance and drive 
efficiencies across the Scheme.  

2.2 This consultation represents the next step in reform of the Scheme, building on the 
responses to the call for evidence and further cost benefit analysis of potential options 
for reform. It sets out 
on the proposals. 

Background 

2.3 With assets of £178 billion in 2012-13, the Local Government Pension Scheme is one 
of the largest funded pension schemes in Europe. Several thousand employers 
participate in the Scheme, which has a total of 4.68 million active, deferred and 
pensioner members.1 The Department for Communities and Local Government is 
responsible for the regulatory framework governing the Scheme in England and 
Wales. 

2.4 The Scheme is managed through 89 funds which broadly correspond to the county 
councils following the 1974 local government reorganisation as well as each of the 33 
London Boroughs. In most cases, the fund administering authorities are upper tier 
local authorities such as a county or unitary council, but there are also some 
administering authorities established specifically to manage their fund, for example the 
Environment Agency Pension Fund and the London Pension Fund Authority. The fund 
authorities have individual governance and working arrangements. Each fund has its 
own funding level, cash-flow and balance of active, deferred and pensioner members, 
which it takes into account when adopting its investment strategy, which is normally 
agreed by  

2.5 Employer contributions to the Scheme, the majority of which are funded by taxpayers, 
were more than £6 billion in 2012-13. The costs of managing and administering the 
scheme were estimated as being £536 million in 2012-13.2 However, the actual costs 
are likely to be rather higher; the investment costs alone have recently been estimated 
as in excess of £790 million.3 While investment returns and the costs of providing 

                                            
 
1
 Scheme asset value and membership figures taken from Department for Communities and Local 

Government statistical data set - Local government pension scheme funds summary data: 2012 to 2013  
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/local-government-pension-scheme-funds-summary-
data-2012-to-2013  
2
 Local government pension scheme funds summary data: 2012 to 2013 

3
 Department for Communities and Local Government: Local Government Pension Scheme structure 

analysis, Hymans Robertson p.11. https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-
scheme-opportunities-for-collaboration-cost-savings-and-efficiencies 

Page 65



 

8 
 

benefits are the most significant drivers of the overall financial position of funds, 
management costs also have an impact on funding levels and thus the pension 
contributions made by employers and scheme members. 

2.6 Under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, there will be a requirement for a national 
scheme advisory board, as well as a local board for each of the 89 funds. The 
regulations that will establish national and local governance arrangements have not 
yet been made and the Department will be consulting on these issues shortly. In the 
meantime, scheme employers and the trade unions have established a Shadow 
Board, which has been considering a number of issues connected with the Scheme, 
including its efficient management and administration. In addition, the Minister for 
Local Government has asked the Shadow Board to consider how the transparency of 
the funds might be improved.  

Getting to this stage 

2.7 In 2010, the Government commissioned Lord Hutton to chair the Independent Public 
Service Pensions Commission. The purpose of the Commission was to review public 
service pensions and to make recommendations on how they might be made more 
sustainable and affordable in the long term, while being fair to both taxpayers and 
public sector workers. 

2.8 arch 2011 and formed the basis for 
major reforms to all public service pension schemes. The new Local Government 
Pension Scheme which came into effect on 1 April 2014 is the first scheme to be 

enacted in the Public 
Service Pensions Act 2013. 

2.9 Lord Hutton highlighted the collaborative approach being taken by funds within the 
Local Government Pension Scheme and recommended that the benefits of co-
operative working between local government pension funds and opportunities to 
achieve efficiencies in administration more generally should be investigated further.4  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.10 More generally, Lord Hutton went on to comment about the need for change and 
improved scheme data. At paragraph 6.1 he said:5 

 
 

                                            
 
4
 Independent Public Service Pensions Commission: Final Report p.17 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/207720/hutton_final_100311.p
df  
5
 Independent Public Service Pensions Commission: Final Report p.122 

Recommendation 23: Central and local government should closely monitor the 
benefits associated with the current co-operative projects within the Local 
Government Pension Scheme, with a view to encouraging the extension of this 
approach, if appropriate, across all local authorities. Government should also 
examine closely the potential for the unfunded public service schemes to realise 
greater efficiencies in the administration of pensions by sharing contracts and 
combining support services, including considering outsourcing. 

Page 66



 

9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.11 The Department therefore co-hosted a round-table event to consider these issues 

with the Local Government Association in May 2013. There were 25 attendees from 
administering authorities, employers, trade unions, the actuarial profession and 
academia. The discussion centred on the possible aims of reform, the potential 
benefits of structural change and the work required to provide robust evidence to 
analyse the emerging options and establish a starting point and target.  

2.12 The objectives for reform identified at the round-table fed into a call for evidence on 
the future structure of the Scheme, which ran from 21 June to 27 September 2013. 
This asked respondents to set out the data required to enable a reliable comparison of 
fund performance and to consider how the administration, management and structure 
of the Scheme might be reformed to address the objectives identified at the round-
table event. These objectives included reduced fund deficits and improved investment 
returns, as well as reduced investment fees and administration costs, greater flexibility 
of investment, especially in infrastructure and more use of better in-house investment 
management.  

2.13 133 responses were received to the call for evidence and these submissions have 
been analysed to inform this consultation. A separate response to the call for evidence 
has been published and is available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/call-for-evidence-on-the-future-structure-
of-the-local-government-pension-scheme. The Shadow Scheme Advisory Board has 
also reviewed the responses to the call for evidence and submitted recommendations 
to the Minister for Local Government. Its findings have been considered in the 
development of this consultation and are available via a link on its webpage or from 

http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/structure-
reform/board-analysis-menu.   

2.14 To support the call for evidence, the Minister for Local Government and the Minister 
for the Cabinet Office commissioned additional analysis using the Contestable Policy 
Fund. The Fund gives Ministers direct access to external policy advice through a 
centrally managed match fund, allowing Ministers to draw directly on the thinking, 
evidence and insight of external experts. Following a competitive tender process, 
Hymans Robertson were selected to establish the aggregate performance of the 
Scheme by asset class and to provide a detailed cost-benefit analysis of three 
potential options for reform: 

 Establishing one common investment vehicle for all funds; 

 Creating five to ten common investment vehicles for fund assets 

 Merging the existing structure into five to ten funds.  

2.15 The analysis set out the costs and benefits of each option; the time required to 
realise savings; the practical and legal barriers to implementation and how they might 

In its interim report, the Commission noted the debate around public service pensions 
is hampered by a lack of consensus on key facts and figures and a lack of readily 
available and relevant data. There are also inconsistent standards of governance 
across schemes. Consequently it is difficult for scheme members, taxpayers and 
commentators to be confident that schemes are being effectively and efficiently run. It 
also makes it more difficult to compare between and within schemes and to identify 
and apply best practice for managing and improving schemes. 

Page 67



 

10 
 

alongside the call for evidence responses and analysis by the Shadow Scheme 
Advisory Board. A copy of the Hymans Robertson report, which did not extend to 
making recommendations, is available o  
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-
opportunities-for-collaboration-cost-savings-and-efficiencies 

 

Page 68



 

11 
 

3. The case for change 

Summary of the proposals 

3.1 Having considered the responses to the call for evidence, as well as the Shadow 
Board bertson report, the Government 
believes that the following steps are needed to help ensure that the Scheme remains 
affordable in the long term for both employers and members. The proposals aim to 
balance the opportunities from aggregation and scale whilst maintaining local 
accountability.  

3.2 The package of proposals set out in this document include: 

 Establishing common investment vehicles to provide funds with a mechanism to 
access economies of scale, helping them to invest more efficiently in listed and 
alternative assets and to reduce investment costs.  

 Significantly reducing investment fees and other costs of investment by using 
passive management for listed assets, since the aggregate fund performance has 
been shown to replicate the market.  

 Keeping asset allocation with the local fund authorities, and making available more 
transparent and comparable data to help identify the true cost of investment and 
drive further efficiencies in the Scheme. 

 A proposal not to pursue fund mergers at this time. 

3.3 Hymans Robe
demonstrated that the significant savings could be achieved by the Scheme if all of the 
funds adopt the following proposals in full. The Government is interested in exploring 
these proposals further with a view to maximising value for money for taxpayers, 
Scheme employers and fund authorities.  

 
3.4 The saving of £420 million associated with moving to passive management of listed 

assets is comprised of two elements: 

 Reduction in investment fees: £230 million 

 Reduction in transaction costs: £190 million 

The performance that is reported by the Local Government Pension Scheme funds is 
net of these transaction costs. 

3.5 The savings associated with passive fund management can be achieved quickly, 
within one to two years. The annual savings arising from using common investment 
vehicles for alternative assets would build gradually, with the full annual savings 
reached over 10 years, as existing contracts came to an end.  

Proposal Estimated Annual 
saving 

Moving to passive fund management of all listed assets, 
accessed through a common investment vehicle. 

£420 million 

common investment vehicle for alternative assets 
£240 million 

Page 69



 

12 
 

3.6 This package of proposals provides a clear opportunity to substantially reduce the 
investment costs of the Scheme. They are most effective when adopted by all 89 
funds and the Government proposes to implement them together. Indeed, the passive 
management of listed assets could be most easily facilitated through a common 
investment vehicle. 

3.7 In addition, the cost of investment has been estimated to be considerably higher than 
previously reported. Recognising the need for more reliable and comparable 
performance and cost data, the Government will continue to work with the Shadow 
Scheme Advisory Board to improve the transparency of fund data as set out in 
paragraph 5.3. 

3.8 The remainder of this section sets out the objectives and rationale for reform and the 
evidence underpinning the approach taken. A more detailed explanation of the 
proposals for reform is provided in section four.  

The objective of reform 

3.9 The cost of the Local Government Pension Scheme has risen considerably since the 
1990s, with the increased costs falling predominantly on Scheme employers and local 
taxpayers. In England alone, the cost to Scheme employers has almost quadrupled 
from £1.5 billion in 1997-98 to £5.7 billion in 2012-13. Indeed, when the Welsh funds 
are also considered, the total cost to employers is around £6.2 billion a year.6 The 
Government has already taken action to reduce the cost of the Scheme and make it 
more sustainable and affordable to employers and taxpayers in the long term. For 
example, the new 2014 Scheme with a revised benefit structure came into effect on 1 
April, helping to reduce and rebalance the cost between members and employers. 
However, it is clear from examining the aggregate data on the Scheme which has 
come to light as part of this review, that there is more that can be done to improve the 
sustainability of the funds.  

3.10 At present, the funds report that administration and investment management costs 
are £536 million per year, of which £409 million is attributed to investment. Indeed, the 
reported cost of investment in cash terms has continued to rise in recent years: from 
£340 million in 2010-11; to £381 million in 2011-12; and £409 million in 2012-13.7 In 
fact, using more detailed and standardised data CEM Benchmarking Incorporated, as 
sub-contractors to Hymans Robertson, identified that the fees for investment 
management of the Scheme could be much higher than reported, at in excess of £790 
million. Some of the fees for investment management are not fully transparent to the 
funds and are therefore difficult to quantify. In practice, the actual cost of investment to 
the funds is likely to be even higher than £790 million, as their analysis did not include 
other costs in their calculation such as transaction costs and performance related fees 
on alternative assets.  

3.11 Coupled with the 
has provided a system review, shedding light on the aggregate performance of the 
Scheme by asset class, as well as the transactions and processes that underpin the 

                                            
 
6
 Local government pension scheme funds summary data: 2012 to 2013  

7
 Local government pension scheme funds summary data: 2012 to 2013   

Page 70



 

13 
 

costs of investment. The work carried out by CEM Benchmarking Incorporated found 
that while funds were paying investment fees comparable with a peer group of funds of 
much larger size with similar mandates, there remained considerable scope for 
savings through a more efficient approach to investment.  

3.12 The priorities of reducing fund deficits and improving investment returns set out in 
the call for evidence are underpinned by one overarching objective: that the Scheme 
remains sustainable and affordable for employers, taxpayers and members in the long 
term. Having considered this new aggregate view of the funds, the evidence indicates 
that there are opportunities to reduce costs without damaging overall Scheme 
performance. The Government therefore believes that it is right to consider 
opportunities to reduce costs and deliver value for money for employers and 
taxpayers, in pursuit of the overarching objective of a more sustainable and affordable 
Scheme.  

Reducing fund costs or tackling deficits? 

3.13 Although the call for evidence was developed around the primary objectives of 
reducing fund deficits and improving investment returns, very few responses set out 
ideas for managing deficits in a different way. The Shadow Scheme Advisory Board 
argued that more thinking could be done to consider how deficits might be addressed 
in the longer term. Its sixth recommendation stated8:  

 

 

3.14 The Government agrees that opportunities to improve funding levels should 
continue to be explored and looks forward to considering the Shadow Board
proposals for alternative ways of managing deficits. Respondents to this 
consultation are also invited to submit any feasible proposals for the reduction 
of fund deficits.  

3.15 While very few submissions effectively tackled deficit reduction, both public and 
private sector respondents recognised that the Scheme may benefit from addressing 
the secondary aim of reducing investment costs, partly by managing investments more 
efficiently. Taking action to reduce the cost of running the Scheme will help to meet 
this objective by increasing the funding available for investment. In the longer term, 
this should help to improve the funding level of the Scheme and reduce the pressure 
on employer contribution rates. This consultation therefore focuses on the cost savings 
to be found through collaboration and more efficient investment. 

Achieving scale to reduce fund costs 

3.16 There is already a growing consensus across the Local Government Pension 
Scheme that there are opportunities to deliver further efficiencies and savings for local 
taxpayers through collaboration. When the call for evidence was launched, funds in 

                                            
 
8
 Call for Evidence on the Future Structure of the Local Government Pension Scheme: The Local 

Government Pension Scheme Shadow Scheme Advisory Board analysis and recommendations, p.4 
http://www.lgpsboard.org/images/CFE/20140115SSABreportFINAL  

The Board will support the Government by (a) developing a shortlist of feasible options 
for managing deficits and (b) conducting further research on the costs and benefits of 
the key options for reform.  

Page 71



 

14 
 

Wales, Scotland and London had already begun to research the benefits of scale and 
explore the relative merits of mergers and common investment vehicles. Similarly, 
shared administration arrangements had been established in a number of areas 
including across Kensington and Chelsea, Hammersmith and Fulham, and 
Westminster; as well as in Northamptonshire and Cambridgeshire.  

3.17 Several responses to the call for evidence cited earlier reports or academic 
research into the benefits of fund size, drawing heavily on the exploratory work of 
Scotland, Wales and London, as well as the international experience of countries 
including Australia and Canada.9 On balance, these reports found that there was no 
clear link between investment returns and fund size. However, they did show that 
there were significant benefits to scale, such as lower investment and administration 
costs, easier access to alternative asset classes like private equity and hedge funds, 
and improved governance. This view was also reached by the Shadow Board in its 
analysis of the call for evidence responses, which argued that:10  

 

 
 
3.18 Although managed as 89 funds, with an asset value of £178 billion the Local 

Government Pension Scheme clearly has the potential to achieve the benefits of scale 
realised by larger funds. Whilst many of the funds have gone some way to achieving 
this by using procurement frameworks or establishing joint-working arrangements, 
there is more that can be done. This consultation will set out how using common 
investment vehicles and passive management for listed assets can in the long term 
lead to savings of over £660 million a year for the Scheme.  

Achieving efficiencies and safeguarding local accountability 

3.19 The call for evidence asked interested parties to suggest options for reform that 
would best meet the primary and secondary objectives set out in paragraph 2.12 
above. A range of tools and approaches to achieving greater economies of scale were 
suggested, with fund mergers, common investment vehicles, and existing 
collaborations such as procurement frameworks all discussed extensively.  

3.20 Two themes were discussed consistently when respondents sought to evaluate the 
merits of the main proposals for reform: 

 The potential cost and time required for implementation;  

 The importance of local accountability. 

Costs and benefits of the proposals 

3.21 Around half of the responses discussed the cost effectiveness of merging funds and 
how this might be implemented. Many argued that while savings could be achieved as 
a result of economies of scale, more analysis was needed to ensure that the benefits 

                                            
 
9
 A list of the most commonly referenced papers can be found on the Shadow Scheme Advisory B

web-pages: http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/structure-reform/responses-public-view 
10

 The Local Government Pension Scheme Shadow Scheme Advisory Board analysis and 
recommendations, p.3  

The evidence appears to show indirect benefits of larger fund sizes, although any direct 
link between fund size and investment return in the Local Government Pension 
Scheme is inconclusive. 

Page 72



 

15 
 

of mergers outweighed the cost and time required to implement them successfully.  

3.22 Analysis was undertaken by Hymans Robertson who evaluated the costs and 
benefits of three options for reform over 10 years. They found that although significant 
savings could be realised over the period by amalgamating into five funds, merger 
could take around 18 months longer to implement than common investment vehicles; 
the delay in the emergence of savings leading to a significant reduction in the net 
present value of savings over 10 years. The report also showed that the savings 
achieved by pooling assets into two common investment vehicles would be slightly 
higher than if 10 were used.11 

Possible model for reform 
Net present value of savings 

over 10 years (£ billions) 

Assets pooled into two common investment vehicles £2.8 

Assets pooled in 10 common investment vehicles £2.6 

Fund assets and liabilities merged into five funds £1.9 

 
3.23  The calculations shown exclude the impact of the reduced transaction costs, which 

Hymans Robertson showed would also help to deliver additional savings of £1.9 billion 
for the Scheme over 10 years.  

3.24 A number of fund authorities also submitted evidence of the benefits to their fund of 
procurement frameworks such as the National LGPS Frameworks. A procurement 
framework provides authorities with a short list of organisations who can bid for 
contracts, reducing the time and cost of running a more substantial process.  

 
 

 

 
 
3.25 Although there are clear benefits to using frameworks, the scale of savings 

achievable does not match those possible through more substantial reform such as 
common investment vehicles. However, the Government believes that there is still a 
role for procurement frameworks to play in delivering savings for the Scheme and is 
keen to see this opportunity taken up by more of the funds.  

Local accountability 

3.26 Most call for evidence responses stressed the importance of local accountability 
and the direct link to elected councillors, which would be lost if funds were merged. At 
present the  Councillors, usually through the pensions committee, are asked 
to agree ishes an annual report 
which details the costs and investment performance of the fund, enabling the public to 
assess how effective the investment strategy has been. Some respondents argued 
that this allows local taxpayers to hold the fund and local councillors to account. As 
one fund authority stated: 

                                            
 
11

 Local Government Pension Scheme structure analysis; Hymans Robertson p.6.  

National LGPS Frame
used their actuarial framework to secure services at a procurement cost of £4,000 
instead of the estimated £30,000-£40,000 required for a full procurement process. If this 
same rate of savings applies to Global Custodian procurements, with costs again 
reduced by 90 per cent, the Framework believes savings of £90,000 per fund can be 
found.  

Page 73



 

16 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
3.27 However, a smaller number of respondents queried the benefit of this link, 

emphasising the importance of Myners Principle 1  that administering authorities 
should ensure that investment decisions are taken by persons or organisations with 
the skills, knowledge, advice and resources necessary to make effective decisions and 
monitor their implementation.12 Although Councillors on the committee receive 
training, there is a risk that they have neither a background in finance nor the time to 
invest in developing the knowledge required to a sufficient depth. In addition, some 
suggested that the frequent turnover of Pensions Committee members as a result of 
the electoral cycle made it difficult to ensure a long term view of the investment 
strategy.  

3.28 The ability to set a tailored investment strategy and determine the asset allocation 
locally was seen as vital amongst respondents from both the public and private 
sectors. This is perceived as an important tool for 
funding position and cash-flow requirements. Several respondents also emphasised 
the importance of local accountability as a means to ensuring the representation of 
Scheme members and employers. As one Scheme employer set out in their response 
to the call for evidence: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.29 Under a fund merger, asset allocation would need to take place at the new, larger 

fund authority level. However, common investment vehicles offer greater flexibility and 
can be established with the asset allocation made either centrally within the vehicle, or 
by the local fund authority. 

3.30 Around 15 responses to the call for evidence stressed that common investment 
vehicles could achieve the benefits of scale attributed to fund mergers, without the 
associated disruption, implementation time, cost or loss of local accountability. As one 
fund outlined when talking of pooling assets in common investment funds:  

 

                                            
 
12

 Pensions Regulator  adaptation of Myners principles for the Local Government Pension Scheme 
http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/docs/igg-myners-principles-update.pdf 

 
members sitting on pe  
 
The regulatory requirements to produce an annual report and accounts and policy 

public domain. This approach ensures local and national accountability. 
 
The Pensions Committee believes that a forced merger of funds could only weaken 

 

The existing arrangements in English County Council and London Funds promote and 
facilitate a clear link between the relevant individua
the public sector continues to fragment the number of scheduled/ admitted bodies will 

between employers and Funds.  

Page 74



 

17 
 

 

 

 
3.31 

analysis, the Government has decided not to consult on fund mergers at this time. 
However, there remains a strong case for achieving economies of scale through the 
use of common investment vehicles.  

This approach might realise significant scale benefits more speedily and with less 
disruption, while still retaining local accountability and decision making on key matters 
such as deficit recovery plans and asset allocation.  

Page 75



 

18 
 

4. Proposals for reform 

Proposal 1: Common investment vehicles 

The case for change 

4.1 
investments and moving to passive investment of listed assets has the potential to 
deliver significant savings of over £660 million per year, through reduced investment 
and other costs for all asset classes in the Scheme. These savings were set out by 
Hymans Robertson, whose report showed that it was likely that the economies of scale 
from aggregation would be best accessed through common investment vehicles.   

4.2 Further savings arise from the efficient structure offered by a common investment 
vehicle. Within any common investment vehicle or pooled fund, money will flow in and 
out as investors purchase and redeem units in the fund. If those buying and selling 
units within a pool can be matched, fund managers will not need to sell assets to meet 
redemption requests and as such the volume of transactions can be minimised, 
improving cost efficiency.  

4.3 
f
infrastructure. Fund of funds are used to achieve the scale required for individual funds 
to make investments they may not be able to access directly. However, this introduces 
an additional layer of fees, increasing the total cost of investment. Setting up a 
common investment vehicle would help funds achieve the scale required to invest, 

 

4.4 Hymans Robertson found that investment fees for alternative assets were particularly 
high compared to other asset classes, accounting for less than 10 per cent of the 

13 showed that 
savings of up to £240 millio

their full course in order to avoid potentially significant termination costs. 
Consequently, although some savings would begin to accrue straight away, this 
annual total would be reached over 10 years.14 

4.5 The wider benefits of common investment vehicles include improved transparency. As 
the funds would be subject to the same investment costs and asset managers, the 
effect of asset allocation and local decision making would become more transparent, 
revealed in part by the variation in investment returns. This should provide the 
Department, fund authorities and taxpayers with an opportunity to compare the 
effectiveness o In addition, the vehicle could provide a 
platform for the operation of national framework agreements, helping to minimise the 
cost of procurement and other administrative costs of investment such as actuarial and 
custodial services.  

                                            
 
13

 Local Government Pension Scheme structure analysis; Hymans Robertson p.11 
14

 Local Government Pension Scheme structure analysis; Hymans Robertson p.7 

Page 76



 

19 
 

4.6 A common investment vehicle for alternative assets could also help to improve 
governance by providing an independent assessment of alternative investment 
strategies, particularly for local infrastructure investment. A pooled vehicle could make 
it easier for funds to invest in infrastructure when appropriate opportunities arise, by 
providing a cost effective way to realise the scale needed.   

4.7 As discussed in paragraph 3.28, 
seen as a vital consideration amongst respondents to the call for evidence. A common 
investment vehicle could be designed to allow asset allocation to remain at local fund 
authority level, consistent with ensuring that decisions are taken in line with existing 
local accountabilities.  

Proposal for reform  

4.8 The Government believes that there are clear advantages to funds in pooling their 
assets in common investment vehicles for all asset classes, but that all asset 
allocation decisions should remain with the fund authorities.  

4.9 Hymans 
over ten years if the funds were organised through one common investment vehicle for 
listed assets and a second for alternatives, rather than a greater number. This 
evidence suggests that savings will be maximised by the creation of two vehicles: a 
single common investment vehicle for listed assets organised by asset class (for 
example, UK equity, European equity, UK bonds and so on), and a second vehicle for 
alternative assets. 

4.10 Concentrating the Scheme into two common investment vehicles may increase its 
exposure to risk. Several public and private sector responses to the call for evidence 
also stressed that capacity constraints may begin to apply if a fund became too large. 
As one fund authority stated in their response to the call for evidence: 

 

 

 
4.11 However, the Government believes that the exposure to risk should be mitigated if 

the asset allocation remains as diversified as it is at present. The Hymans Robertson 
report noted that the issue of capacity constraint would not apply to the common 
investment vehicle for listed assets if it were invested in passive funds.  

Q1. Do you agree that common investment vehicles would allow funds to achieve 
economies of scale and deliver savings for listed and alternative investments? 
Please explain and evidence your view. 

Q2. Do you agree with the proposal to keep decisions about asset allocation with 
the local fund authorities? 

Q3. How many common investment vehicles should be established and which 
asset classes do you think should be separately represented in each of the 
listed asset and alternative asset common investment vehicles? 

Furthermore there may be issues about capacity  the best fund managers may be 
closed to new business, and even if indeed the capacity exists, they may be reluctant 
to have too much business from a single client (as that creates business risks).  

Page 77



 

20 
 

Further considerations  

A. Changes to the investment regulations 

4.12 The current investment regulations place restrictions on the amount of a fund that 
can be invested in certain types of vehicle, for example limited partnerships in 
aggregate are subject to a limit of 30 per cent. In addition, while some types of 
common investment vehicle are listed within the regulations, others are not. Squire 
Sanders, as subcontractor to Hymans Robertson, indicated that secondary legislation 
could be used to reform the investment regulations, removing the anomalies created 
between different types of vehicle and any ambiguity about the o invest 
substantially in common investment vehicles.  

4.13 The Government recognises that the investment regulations are in need of review. 
The Department will consult separately on reforms to these regulations, including any 
changes required to facilitate investment in common investment vehicles. However, 
any initial thoughts would be welcome in response to this consultation.  

B. The type of common investment vehicle 

4.14 The term collective or common investment vehicle can be used very broadly and 
take different forms. At this time, the Government would like to seek views on the 
specific type of common investment vehicle to be used, but anticipates that the 
following principles might underpin the design: 

 Pooling of assets, possibly on a unitised or share basis; 

 Safeguards for individual funds, for example through Financial Conduct Authority 
authorisation; 

 Governance arrangements considered as part of wider governance reforms arising 
from 2013 Public Service Pensions Act; 

 Strategic asset allocation remains with individual funds; and 

 An option for other funded public service pension schemes to participate in the 
common investment vehicles if they wish.  

4.15 There are a number of types of common investment vehicle available that might 
fulfil some or all of these principles. One such model currently under review is the tax 
transparent Authorised Contractual Scheme.15 However, careful consideration of the 
governance arrangements for any common investment vehicle would be needed 
before any more detailed proposals are developed.  

Q4. What type of common investment vehicle do you believe would offer the most 
beneficial structure? What governance arrangements should be established? 

Proposal 2: Passive fund management of listed assets  

4.16 There are two main types of investment approach, which can be used individually or 
in combination.  

 Passive management typically invests assets to mirror a market in order to deliver a 

                                            
 
15

 
http://www.fca.org.uk/firms/firm-types/collective-investment-schemes/authorised-contractual-schemes  

Page 78



 

21 
 

return comparable with the overall performance of the market being tracked.  

 An actively managed fund employs a professional fund manager or investment 
research team to make discretionary investment decisions on its behalf.  

4.17 The Local Government Pension Scheme makes use of both of these approaches, 
although active management is used more extensively than passive. By applying their 
expertise, it is hoped that active managers will deliver a level of return in excess of the 

management. A few funds gave examples of how they had benefited from active 
management in their response to the call for evidence.  

 

 
4.18 However, Hymans Robertson cite evidence from defined benefit pensions funds in 

the United States which shows that for equities, returns are explained predominantly 
by market movements and asset allocation policy, with active management playing no 
role16.  

The case for change 

4.19 There are some risks associated with paying for active management, since not all 
active managers will be able to achieve returns higher than the market rate. Hymans 
Robertson was therefore asked to examine the performance of the Scheme in 

management.  

4.20 Hymans Robertson considered the performance before fees of equities and bonds 
in aggregate across the Scheme over the 10 years to March 2013. This new analysis, 

, showed that there was no clear 
evidence that the Scheme as a whole had outperformed the market in the long term. 
They concluded that listed assets such as bonds and equities could have been 

 

Equity market 17 UK North 
America 

Europe 
excluding 

UK 

Japan Developed 
Pacific 

excluding 
Japan 

Emerging 
Markets 

FTSE Index  10.7 9.5 11.4 7.4 16.4 18.2 

Aggregate Local 
Government Pension 
Scheme  

10.8 8.4 11.6 7.5 17.3 17.1 

Excess active return 
gross of fees 

0.1 -1.1 0.2 0.1 0.9 -1.1 

                                            
 
16

 Local Government Pension Scheme structure analysis; Hymans Robertson, p.19. Data based on 
iere, Sandra 

Rigot and Ombretta Signori. 
17 Local Government Pension Scheme structure analysis, Hymans Robertson, table 9 p.20.  Sources: State 

estimate of the extra cost which reflects the low fees that the Local Government Pension Scheme in 
aggregate pay for active management of UK equities. The global cost premium is estimated by CEM as 
0.56% 

For example, the active manager of one fund had outperformed their performance 
benchmark by 3.2 per cent since 2007 and by 5.7 per cent in the last three years. 

Page 79



 

22 
 

Extra cost (per 
annum) of active  

0.34* 0.27 0.20 n/a 0.49 0.53 

 
4.21 This analysis of investment return is specific to the performance of the Local 

Government Pension Scheme in aggregate. 

4.22 In their report, Hymans Robertson quantified the fees savings achievable from 
moving to passive management of listed assets as £230 million per annum, assuming 
that all funds participated.18  

4.23 In addition to the savings arising from lower fees, a move to passive management 
will also reduce the level of asset turnover. This occurs as investment managers buy 
and sell assets within an asset class. Both passive and active managers buy and sell 
assets, but turnover is generally much higher, and therefore more costly, under active 
management. Hymans Robertson estimated 
overseas equities had been managed passively in the financial year 2012-13, turnover 
costs would have been around £190 million lower.19  

4.24 Hymans Robertson also conducted a detailed analysis of the transition 
methodology and costs to move to passive management of all listed assets. They 
identified that the cost of transition could be around £215 million.20 These transition 
costs are approximately equal to the savings achieved from reduced turnover costs in 
just one year.  

4.25 Their analysis of transition also concluded that any market disruption will be limited 
as there is no proposed change to asset allocation. Hymans Robertson suggested that 
a single coordinated but phased transition would minimise market impact.  

Proposals for reform 

4.26 The Hymans Robertson report concluded that if the Scheme acts collectively and 
moves all listed assets into passive management, investment fees and turnover costs 
could be reduced by up to £420 million per year. This represents a significant saving 
for the funds, employers and local taxpayers which would begin to accrue within two 
years of moving to passive management of listed assets. 

4.27 Having considered this analysis, the Government believes that funds should make 
greater use of passive management for all listed assets such as bonds and equities. 
Alternative assets such as property, infrastructure or private equity would continue to 
be managed actively through a separate common investment vehicle.  

Further consideration  

A. Take up of passive management 

4.28 A number of the responses to the call for evidence emphasised that a small 
movement in investment performance has the potential to have a more significant 

the savings achievable from investment 
management fees.  It is therefore important that full consideration is given to the 

                                            
 
18

 Local Government Pension Scheme structure analysis; Hymans Robertson p.7 
19

 Local Government Pension Scheme structure analysis; Hymans Robertson p.7 
20

 Local Government Pension Scheme structure analysis; Hymans Robertson p.17 

Page 80



 

23 
 

impact of a move to passive management on overall Scheme performance.  

4.29 The Government acknowledges that, as set out in paragraph 4.17, there are funds 

analysis of the savings associated with moving to passive management of listed 
assets is underpinned by a full consideration of investment performance by asset class 
across the Local Government Pension Scheme. This analysis shows that a move to 
passive management would not have damaged returns across the Scheme as, in 
aggregate, the ormance has replicated the market in much the 
same way as passive investment. 

4.30 The Government therefore wishes to explore how to secure value for money for 
taxpayers, Scheme members and employers through effective use of passive 
management, while not adversely affecting investment returns. There is a range of 
options open to Government and the funds to achieve this: 

 Funds could be required to move all listed assets into passive management, in 
order to maximise the savings achieved by the Scheme.  

 Alternatively, funds could be required to invest a specified percentage of their listed 
assets passively; or to progressively increase their passive investments.  

 
 

 Funds could simply be expected to consider the benefits of passively managed 
listed assets, in the light of the evidence set out in this paper and the Hymans 
Robertson report  

Q5. In light of the evidence on the relative costs and benefits of active and passive 
management, 
performance, which of the options set out above offers best value for 
taxpayers, Scheme members and employers? 

Page 81



 

24 
 

5. Additional considerations  

Data transparency 

5.1 Although all of the funds publish annual reports setting out their costs and investment 
returns, a theme common to the majority of responses to the call for evidence was the 
need for greater transparency and more comparable data. As one fund outlined in its 
response to the call for evidence: 

 

 

 

 

5.2 Moving to a common investment vehicle will help to facilitate this transparency, as the 
investment fees derived from a common vehicle will be more comparable. It will also 
help to highlight the effect of asset allocation and fund decision making. Since the 
funds would be investing through the same vehicles, the effect of asset allocation will 
be more easily seen from the resulting variation in investment returns. The common 
investment vehicles would also allow greater clarity over variations between asset 
allocations and actuarial discount rates. 

5.3 However, it is clear that further improvements are needed to ensure published 
Scheme data is comparable between funds. The Minister for Local Government has 
asked the Shadow Board to look at data transparency in more detail and it has already 
made progress in this area, bringing together all o  
website. The Government is keen to support the Shadow Board in this work and looks 
forward to working with it to ensure more comparable data is available in the future.  

Procurement frameworks  

5.4 As set out in paragraph 3.24, there are clear advantages and savings to making use of 
the National LGPS Frameworks. The frameworks provide funds with the opportunity to 
reduce the cost and time associated with procurement. By developing a short list of 
approved candidates, the frameworks can help funds reduce the time taken to procure 
a service from six to nine months to a matter of weeks, as well as offering 
standardised terms and conditions. In addition to offering savings to the funds, the 
small fee paid by funds to access the framework helps to ensure that the model is self-
financing in the long term.  

5.5 At present, frameworks have been established by the National LGPS Framework for 
investment consultancy, global custody and benefit and actuarial services. The 
Government believes that funds can deliver further savings, using these frameworks to 
procure a range of services including actuarial and investment advice. Funds should 
give serious consideration to making greater use of these frameworks. In addition, 
common investment vehicles could be used as a platform from which to operate such 
frameworks.  

There is currently insufficient information available to permit a robust comparison of 
different Local Government Pension Scheme funds. This includes data on investment 
performance, investment management costs, pension administration costs, and 
actuarial information. All of this data should already be available within each Local 
Government Pension Scheme fund but there needs to be a central repository to collate 
and analyse the information and ensure that it is comparable. 

Page 82



 

25 
 

Administration  

5.6 The question of how to improve the cost effectiveness of administration was posed in 
the call for evidence as a secondary objective for structural reform. Around 12 
submissions suggested that larger funds were able to achieve lower administration 
costs. Some fund authorities and pensions administrators set out the benefits they had 
seen from aggregating administration services, arguing that significant savings could 
be achieve from reduced staff and accommodation costs, greater automation, member 
and employer self service and I.T cost reductions. For example, as a shared service 
for fund authorities set out in their response: 

 

 

 
5.7 However, while these savings are valuable to the Scheme, they are small in 

comparison to the cost reductions associated with greater passive management of 
listed assets and the use of common investment vehicles. In addition, as some 
respondents stressed, the administration of the Scheme is already facing a period of 
significant change with the introduction of the 2014 Scheme from 1 April 2014.  

5.8 Having considered these factors, the Government has decided not to consult on 
administration reform at this time. However, the call for evidence has highlighted the 
scope for potential administrative efficiencies as well as the associated risks. At this 
stage, the Government proposes to allow the administration arrangements for the 
2014 Scheme to mature before considering reform any further. 

venture between two Scheme funds established in October 2010, which has already 
saved £500k per annum in pensions administration. 

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                     
Victoria Edwards 
LGPSReform@communities.gsi.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Dear Ms Edwards 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme: Opportunities for collaboration, cost savings 
and efficiencies 
 
The London Borough of Haringey Local Government Pension Fund welcomes the 
opportunity to respond to consultation on the future structure of the LGPS.  
 
We are highly supportive of the consultation and of the questions being asked.  The 
debate on structure of the LGPS has been intensive and has already generated 
significant structural change through moves to establish a London CIV.  The London 
Borough of Haringey is committed to the principle and benefits of co-operative working 
between local government pension funds. For example during 2013 the Haringey Fund 
has utilised the National LGPS Frameworks to procure both Actuarial and Investment 
Consultancy services. The Fund has part financed the establishment of a London-wide 
Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV).  We welcome the positive attitude of the DCLG to 
the responses to the Call for Evidence and the Hyman’s Robertson report.  We also 
consider the broad thrust towards collective working on a voluntary basis to be 
appropriate. 
 
However, to believe that the issues around deficits and high contribution rates will be 
wholly solved by better management of costs is misguided.  As shown by an 
examination of the 2013 Actuarial Valuation reports for over 80 of the LGPS Funds in 
England and Wales most Funds Investments returns net of costs during the period 2010 
to 2013 exceeded the actuarial projections made in the 2010 Valuations. The increase in 
deficits is due to the recognition of improvements in longevity and lower bond yields, 
mainly due to the current economic conditions and quantitative easing. Indeed an 
examination of the more than 80 of the 2013 Actuarial Valuation reports on the Shadow 
Board website shows that if the effect of lower bond yields between 2010 and 2013 is 
removed the funding position of LGPS Funds improved during this period. The recent 
increase in the numerical deficits of LGPS Funds has nothing to do with a failure by 
LGPS Funds to achieve good investment returns.  
 
The Government has taken some limited action in the 2014 reforms to make the benefit 
structure more affordable longer term although this does not address the pre 2014 
pension liabilities for which Local Authorities will have to bear the costs of a benefit 
structure that was unsustainable. 
 
In response to each of the questions in the consultation document evidence the London 
Borough of Haringey Local Government Pension Fund wishes make the following 
comments: 
 
 

Page 85



Question 1- Do you agree that common investment vehicles would allow funds to 
achieve economies of scale and deliver savings for listed and alternative 
investments?  Please explain and evidence your review. 
 

Yes overall we do.  We refer you to our response to last year’s Call for Evidence in 
which we stated: 
 
“Co-operative working between Funds may clearly assist in achieving the high level 
objectives of dealing with deficits and improving investment returns. Co-operative 
working will potentially facilitate the sharing of ideas and the joint procurement/provision 
of services while not undermining the local accountability which is such a positive feature 
of the existing 89 Fund approach. 
 
 For example a Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) such as that currently under active 
consideration by the London Funds (with the active participation of the London Borough 
of Haringey which has [contributed] £25,000 towards costs in connection with the 
establishment of a London wide CIV) will facilitate the identification of “best of breed” 
managers across different asset classes and enable these to be accessed at potentially 
lower fees through the buying power of the CIV.  A voluntary approach that has the 
same potential to impact on management fees, governance capabilities and selection of 
high quality investment managers, yet avoids the disruption and costs of restructure and 
maintains local involvement, must be preferable to compulsory mergers.” 
 
This remains our opinion.  We know from the fee structures in place for our existing 
mandates that the fee scale reduces as the size of the mandate increases.  While 
savings are readily achievable for ‘standard’ products e.g. developed equities, 
government bonds etc, for alternative assets, there is the added challenge of the sheer 
variety of such mandates and how a CIV would streamline these to achieve volume 
discounts. 
 
Of course, saving fees should not come at the cost of lower investment returns and a 
CIV, particularly one managing active and alternative mandates must have appropriately 
skilled resources. 
 
Participation in any particular CIV should however be voluntary. CIVs need to 
demonstrate that they can improve returns for individual Funds through lower fees for 
passive strategies and both lower fees and “superior” manager selection for active 
strategies. It cannot simply be assumed that in all cases procurement through a CIV will 
be more advantageous than procurement by an individual Fund. There should not be 
compulsion on a Fund to use a CIV. Funds should be required to positively consider the 
use of a CIV and explain in a report to their Pension Committee why or why not a CIV 
was used to implement any particular strategy. 
 
There should be more than one CIV as there are so many different approaches that a 
Fund may wish to follow in terms of implementing its Strategic Asset Allocation that no 
one CIV could meet the needs of all 89 Funds. To take passive equity investment as a 
simple example there is not one but many potential indices that a Fund may wish to 
utilise and any one CIV may not provide access to products utilising the type of 
approach that an individual Fund wishes to enact its Strategic Asset Allocation. The 
development of a number of CIVs (see also answer to Question 3) will increase the 
range of approaches/products offered through CIVs meaning that Funds are more likely 

Page 86



to achieve improved returns (net of fees) through the voluntary use of a CIV rather than 
through individual procurement. 
 
Question 2- Do you agree with the proposal to keep decisions about asset 
allocation with the local fund authorities? 
 
 
Yes.  Again, we fully explained this in our response to the Call for Evidence. 
 
“The existing Funds provide the basis for a high level of accountability to local taxpayers 
and other interested parties by virtue of the fact that they are (almost) all administered by 
a major local authority usually a London Borough or County Council or in Wales a lead 
unitary Council or in the case of the former Metropolitan County Council schemes a lead 
Metropolitan Borough. This arrangement provides democratically based accountability to 
all stakeholders. 
 
There are very many employers within the local government pension scheme who are 
not Administering Authorities. These employers who are very important “interested 
parties” are diverse in their nature and the present 89 Fund arrangement allows for each 
employer to be a member of a Fund which is fairly local to them. The current 
arrangements also allow for a reasonable level of representation by such employers on 
the governing committee and any sub committees or working groups established by the 
Administering Authority. 
 
Improved accountability is of course desirable and this should clearly be assisted and 
improved by the new governance arrangements to be introduced as a result of the 
Public Service Pensions Act 2013. 
 
Given that local accountability is clearly embedded to the current structure of the LGPS 
any alternative proposal in terms of the amalgamation of Funds or the creation of “super 
funds” would result in the loss of local decision making and accountability on issues of 
interest to local taxpayers and other stakeholders including deficit recovery plans and 
employer contribution rates. In London taxpayers are provided with the vast majority of 
their local government services by a London Borough which also in its role as an 
Administering Authority runs the LGPS in that borough area. This arrangement which 
has been in place since 1965 is easy to understand. Taxpayers would doubtlessly find 
any alternative arrangement based on “super funds” in London less transparent and 
easy to understand. Any such reorganisation would run counter to the principle of 
localism. 
 
As already stated the present structure of 89 Funds allows for fairly local governance, 
decision making and accountability. The number of employing bodies within the LGPS is 
clearly increasing and will continue to do so as a result of initiatives such as the 
conversion of schools to academies, the creation of Free Schools and the continuing 
trend towards outsourcing of local government services. The opportunity for employing 
bodies to be represented on Administering Authority decision making committees and 
groups is therefore becoming ever more important. This fact reinforces the desirability of 
maintaining the existing 89 Funds. Any reduction in the number of Funds will make it 
more difficult to meaningfully actively involve employers in the governance of the LGPS 
and make it genuinely accountable to them.” 
 

Page 87



Local accountability will however be diminished by any compulsory requirement on 
Funds to use a CIV to procure asset managers. As indicated elsewhere in this response 
a well developed CIV approach will result in Funds looking to CIVs to procure asset 
managers rather than seeking to procure themselves. However local accountability, and 
value for money, is supported by an approach where an individual Fund gives careful 
and transparent consideration to differing procurement approaches before making a final 
decision as to approach to be utilised. 
 
Question 3- How many common investment vehicles should be established and 
which asset classes do you think should be separately represented in each of the 
listed asset and alternative asset common investment vehicles? 
 
Assuming that the first part of the question relates to management structures i.e. a 
London CIV with multi sub funds is one CIV, then more than one should be available to 
each Local Authority.  Possibly a choice of three or four will offer a good balance of 
choice and scale.  Competition amongst CIV’s is important.  Talk of regional CIV, e.g. 
one for London, will lead to monopolies, which are rarely run for the benefit of 
consumers.  We prefer to see Local Authorities given an option of which CIV to use.  
The advantages of more than one is that there will be competition to 
 

1. Keep the CIV’s own costs low and encourage democratic governance.  Also 

funds can select what they believe to be the strongest CIV. 

2. Encourage the CIV to negotiate the lowest costs with fund managers. 

3. Enable CIV’s to develop asset class strategies in discussion with individual 

funds, such that there is choice but not unnecessary proliferation.  For example 

some investors may wish alternatives forms of passive – equal weighted or value 

weighted.  Not all CIV’s might wish to offer this option, but if there is a choice, 

one may do so. 

 

Groups of Local Authorities should be able to set up additional CIV’s that may better suit 

their own particular requirements. 

The number of asset classes should evolve in discussion between each CIV and 
individual funds.  There will be potentially many strategies / pools for each asset class 
e.g. for passive equities – global market cap, regional market cap, regional small cap, 
emerging, frontier, alternative passive etc.  The starting point should be to identify 
current benchmarks in use and try and consolidate into a manageable number that 
doesn’t unreasonably restrict choice.  Over time additional choices will emerge provided 
that Local Authorities have the ability to shop around between CIV’s. 
 
 
Question 4- What type of common investment vehicle do you believe would offer 
the most beneficial structure?  What governance arrangements should be 
established? 
 
Not being experts in pooled fund structures we have restricted our response to desired 
characteristics of a CIV: 
 

• It is as tax efficient as direct investment by a Local Authority Pension Scheme. 

Page 88



• Establishment and structural costs are minimised. 

• Ownership and management control by investors. 

• Liquidity is in line with the underlying instruments e.g. minimum monthly for listed 
asset classes. 

• Avoidance of un-necessary transaction costs. 

• Initially, the use of an experienced fund administrator to manage the accounting and 
investment / disinvestment functions. 

• Transparency as to costs incurred. 

• Participation by any individual LGPS Fund is voluntary. 
 
The key driver of good governance will be the retention of choice to use or not use a 
CIV.  Ideally, each CIV will be owned by Local Authorities, probably regional groupings.  
However, the election of directors who oversea the CIV should also involve those who 
invest through the CIV. 
 
The day-to-day activities may be controlled by staff appointed by the ‘directors’ or out-
sourced.  What matters is that shareholders can monitor and influence these 
arrangements.  CIV’s should be responsive to the needs of local authorities and if not 
they should be not be preserved. 
 
CIV’s may well wish to expand their remit and take on additional functions e.g. those 
typically performed by investment consultants or fund managers.  Their capabilities and 
skills need to be consistent with the roles performed. 
 
Question 5- In light of the evidence on the relative costs and benefits of active and 
passive management, including Hymans Robertson’s evidence on aggregate 
performance, which of the options set out above offers best value for taxpayers, 
Scheme members and employers? 
 
Haringey has recognised that both passive and active management have a place in our 
fund.  Currently, all our equities and index linked bonds, which comprise 75% of our 
strategy, are passively managed, with the other 25% (property, credit and private equity) 
actively managed.  We do not believe that all asset classes can be passively managed 
and that skilled investors can add value through changing allocations to assets classes 
within diversified mandates and selecting securities that can out-perform an index.  
Passive management is not possible where there is not an investable benchmark e.g. 
private equity and property.  We would also have very serious concerns with passive 
management of credit outside perhaps UK government bonds held for liability matching 
purposes. 
 
Our decision to use passive management for all our listed equities was due to the 
recognition that: 
 

1. We had suffered from poor active performance despite taking professional advice 
and we could not guarantee that this would not continue. 
 

2. Time spent discussing the appointment and monitoring of active managers was 
taking an inappropriately large share of the Pensions Committee available time. 

 

Page 89



3. The fee savings from passive management out-weighted the likely gains from 
active management. 

 
While we believe that active management of equities, our largest asset class, is not 
currently appropriate for the Haringey fund, this may not be the case for all Local 
Authorities, particularly those with well resourced internal teams. 
 
Although not directly relevant to Haringey, we do see dangers with Local Authorities who 
have strong beliefs in their abilities to appoint and monitor active fund managers that are 
not supported by a positive track record of fund manager selection.  It is all too easy to 
pass responsibility for poor past performance to the fund manager or investment 
consultant, without acknowledging the failures in monitoring by administering authorities. 
We are however aware that there are London Boroughs who have active equity 
managers who have a long term record of outperforming their benchmark net of fees. It 
would therefore be against the interests of such Funds to require them to disengage 
from active equity management in favour of passive equity management. 
 
Of the options listed, we believe a comply or explain approach is optimum.  We have 
explained above why we believe passive is not appropriate to all circumstances.  
However for listed equities, we do believe that it is the best approach unless equities are 
managed by an internal team or there is clear evidence of long term successful 
outperformance of the benchmark net of fees by an individual Funds existing active 
equity manager, or clear evidence based on an in depth assessment that any proposed 
new active equity manager will outperform the benchmark net of fees over a five year 
timescale. 
 
Under a comply or explain regime, it is important that guidance is given on the factors 
that should be addressed when explaining active management of asset classes that can 
be effectively invested on a passive basis.  The explanation should include past 
performance history at an asset class level compared with an appropriate passive 
benchmark, illustrating the value added or lost though active management.  Ideally, this 
will be externally verified and be over a prescribed time period e.g. five years, to avoid 
selective disclosures.   
 
When discussing the skills of Members, officers and advisors as reasons to support 
active management, this should be highlighted by examining the contribution of fund 
manager appointments recently terminated.   Skilled investors will terminate mandates 
before change in capability is reflected in below benchmark returns. 
 
To make comply or explain robust, explanations should be scrutinised by the Scheme 
Advisory Board, who should publically comment when they see explanations that have 
no real substance. 
 
 
This response has been discussed with and approved by the Pensions Committee of the 
London Borough of Haringey.  I trust the above provides a positive and constructive 
response to the consultation document. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 

Page 90



Kevin Bartle 
Assistant Director - Finance 
 
 

 

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Terms of Reference of the Pensions Committee
	5. Pensions Committee - New Terms of Reference 2014

	6 External Audit Plan - 31 March 2014
	6. 3.2 Audit Plan - LB Haringey Pension Fund Final

	7 Pension Fund - Review of Prior Year Activity
	8 Pension Fund - Work Plan 2014/15
	9 Pension Fund Quarterly Update
	10 DCLG Consultation Response - Opportunities for Collaboration, Cost Savings and Effectiveness
	10. 4.2 Consultation_LGPS_structural_reform  6 may 2014
	4 3 Consultation response v3 13 June


